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COMPANY SUMMARY

Introduction

Templeton Emerging Markets Investment Trust PLC (“TEMIT") 15 a dlosed ended nvestment trust whose shares are
quoted on both the London and New Zealand Stock Exchanges, however the majonty of its shareholders are based n
the UK

Objective
The mvestment objective of TEMIT is 1o provide long term capual appreciation for its mvestors through nvestment 1n
companies operating m emerging markets or whose stacks are lsted on the stock markets of such countnes

Assets

TEMIT 15 the largest emerging markets mvestment trust n the UK, wath total assets of £2 3 blhon as at 30 Apnl
2008, mvesting i the stock markets of emerging couninies However, investments n companies listed on more
developed stock exchanges may also be made where those companes denve a significant source of revenue from
emerging markets

Management
The Board of Directors 1s responsible for the overall strategy of the Company and monitoring pesformance of the
Company

The Board has appomted Templeton Asset Management Lid (“TAML’ or the “Investment Manager') as the Investment
Manager of the Company to carry out day to day invesiment management services for the Company TAML has over
20 years of mvestmeni expenence m emerging markets and approximately US$41 bilhon n assets under management
TAML 1s part of the Frankin Templeton Group which has US$617 billion 1n assets under management as of 30 Apni
2008

Share Capital
At 30 Apnl 2008 the Company s authonsed share capital consisted of 1,362,419 566 Ordinary Shares of 25p of which
472 681,216 were 1ssued and fully paid Dunmg the year the Company bought back 63,300,377 shares

AIC
The Company 15 a member of The Associauon of Investment Compares (AIC)

How to Invest
There are two ways of purchasing shares in TEMIT
| Through the Templeton Investment Plan

Through the Templeton Investment Plan, mvestors have a cost effecuve and straightforward route for nvesting
TEMIT The Plan currently has approximately 4,900 members The Plan 1s designed 10 accommodate the needs of
an mvestor, whether they wish to

— invest a regular monthly or quarterly amount — mimumum £50 monthly or £150 quarierly
~ make occasional lamp sum mvestments - mitial minimum £250, mimmum subsequent mvesiments £30

2 Directly m the stock market through a stockbroker

For more information contact your financial adviser or call us free on 0800 303 306 Alternauvely, you can
visit the Franklin Templeton Investments website at www franklintempleton co uk

This report does not constitute or form part of any offer for shares or an invianon to apply Jor shares The pnce of shares
and tncome from them can go down as well as up and you may not get back the full amount that you mvested Past
performance 1s no guarantee of future performance Currency fluctuations will affect the value of overseas investments
Emerging Markets can be more nsky than Developed Markets Please consult your professional adwiser before deciding to
mvest
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

2007 2008

Year ended Year ended
30 Apnl 30 Apni
2008 2007 Change
Net Assets and Sharehotders’ Funds (£ mihon) 2,291 40 1,925 48 10 0%
Net Asset Value (pence per Ordinary Share) 484 77 359 24 34 9%
Totai Shareholder Retum 337% 4 2%
Benchmark 1
MSCI Emerging Markets Index 27 0% 75%
Benchmark 2
S&PAFCI Composite Index 256% S 0%
Share Price (pence) 43800 32725 338%
Year ~ High (pence) 485 50 3138 30
Year — Low (pence) 32475 26555
Dwidend (pence per Ordinary Share) 350 313 11 8%
Revernue Farmnings (pence per Ordinary Share)t 407 416 {22%)
Share Price Discount to Net Asset Value 96% B 9%
Total Expense Ratiot 133% 132%

Indices above are shown on a total return basis in GBP Source Franklm Templeton Invesiments and Datastream

The Company has prepared 1ts financtal statements i accordance with International Financial Reporung Standards

("IFRS™ for the years ended 30 Apnl 2008 and 30 Apnl 2007

+ The Farnings per Ordmary Share figure 15 based on the earmings shown 1 the “Revenue’ column n the Income
Siatement on page 38 and Note 5 of the Notes to the Financial Statements

% The Toual Expense Rauo represents the annuahsed total expenses of the Company divided by the monthly average

trading net assets of the Company for the year

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC



TEN YEAR RECORD

1999 2008

Year ended 30 Apnl 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008
Total Net Assets and

Shareholders Funds (£000) 721571 749906 519031 666217 595486 778457 1065937 1866199 1925484 2291395
NAV Basic (pence) 153 26 159 25 13566 146 24 13082 17101 196 88 34818 359 24 48477
NAV Diluted (pence} 149 95 15493 13521 144 00 N/A 164 58 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Price  Crdimary (pence) 129 00 11625 11350 12500 107 25 144 00 167 25 31025 32725 438 00
Price  Warrants (pence) 3700 2200 17 00 17 50 375 1325 N/A N/A N/A NAA
DMiscount {%) 15 8% 27 0% 16 3% 14 5% 18 0% 15 8% 15 9% L09% §9% 96%
Revenue Earmings per share

Undihuted (pence} 168 134 1 36 182 170 289 342 365 416 407
Reveriue Exrmngs per share

Diluted (pence) 140 112 113 151 NA 288 N/A N/A N/A N/A
Net Dividends per

Ordinary share {pence) 110 110 125 125 125 225 225 267 313 350
Toral Expense Raho 118% 157% 161% 1 34% 148% L 48% 150% 141% 132% 133%

*Prior to Apnl 2005 the results were prepared n accordance with UK GAAP The results for the year ended 30 Apnl
2005 have been restated n accordance with IFRS

The main differences as a result of adopung IFRS are

o Investments are valued on a bid basis, a5 opposed to a mid basis, and

e Only dvidends paid dunng the year are reflected m the Financial Statements A dividend of 3 30p per share on the
Company’s profits of 2008 has been proposed

TOTAL RETURN - with dividends re invested

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT

Performance

In my first annual statement to you as Chairman 1 am
delighted to report that the net asset value per share rose
from 359 24 pence at 30 Apnl 2007 to 484 77 pence at

30 Apnl 2008 This tepresents an increase of 34 9% despite
a turbulent year for financial markets

The siated objective of the Company 1s to provide lang
term capual appreciation for 1s invesiors and since 1s
launich in 1989 the net asset value of the Company, m
sterling terms has nsen by 1 479 4% compared wath a nse
of 673 4% lor the MSCi Emerging Markeis Index and

707 8% for the S&P/IFC Investable Composite Index The
contnued long term performance of your Company sets
apart from 11s peers and makes 1t an attractive proposition
for long term nvestmen

The share pnce at 30 April 2008 was 438 00 pence,
compared with 327 25 pence a1 the begimming of the
hnancal year an increase of 33 8% The Company s
discount widened shightly during the year increasing from
89% tmually 10 9 6% at the end of the year the discount
generally was in the range of 8% 1o i1%

The total assets 4l the year end were £2 287 milhon
compared 10 £1,925 million at 30 Apnl 2007 The total
return for the Company for the year ncluding divdends
te nvested, was 35 7% Over the year, the M5CL Emerging
Markets Index and the S&P/IFC Investable Composite
Index ncreased by 27 0% and 25 6% respectively

| am delighted 10 report that TEMIT has also been
nominated for a number of independent awards {rom

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

35.7%

The total return for the Company for
the year, including dividends
re-invested, was 35.7%.

personal finance magazines prnmartly recogrusing is strong
performance since the beginnung of 2008 TEMIT won both
the Best Investment Trust in the Global Growth category of
the Moneywise Investment Trust Awards 2008 and Best
Large Trust 2007 1 the investment Trusts magazine
awards The Company was also highly commended n Best
Large Trust sector of the Money Observer Investment Trust
Awards 2008

These awards demonstrate the Company s contnued
commutment 1o eelng 1ts objective to delver strong
capnal growth o shareholders over the long term

The Managers Report & Portfoho Review on pages 9 to 13
gves a detalled analysis of the Company’s performance over
the year The portfolio 1s managed using the vaiue style of
investing and the investment process 15 descnbed on

pages 21 and 22

On 18 June 2008 the net asset value per share had fallen
by 3 3% lo 468 60 pence since 30 Apnl 2008, and the
share pnce correspondingly by 0 5% to 436 Q0 pence

Tender Offer

Al the EGM held on 13 fune 2008 the propusals for a
tender offer 10 purchase up to 30% of the Company s share
capital were approved Accordingly, the propesals sel oul in
the Circular 1o shareholders dated 20 May 2008 are
currently berng implenrented

The tender alfer proposals were designed to

o provide an oppostumsy for returmng capial to those
sharehalders seeking an exit from the Company



# preserve or enhance the miterests of contnuing
shareholders,

o maman the hquidity of the Company s shares 1 the
secondary market, and

e bnng the demand {rom buyers and sellers of the
Company s shares closer 10 equilibrnium

The totat number of shares successfully endered was

141 8 milhon leaving 330 9 mullion shares mn 1ssue after the
tender proposals are fuily implemented The strke prce
discount was 4% to the NAV whch resulted 1n an uphft to
the NAV for the benefit of continuing shareholders of 1 7%
Following the allocaton of assets 1o the tender poot the
assets attributable to continuing shareholders was

£1,551 mullhon

In the Circular to shareholders proposing the tender offer
the costs were estimated at L6 mullion All of these expenses
wiil be borne by exiting shareholders

Sharehclders also voted in favour of granting authonty o
the Company to purchase up to 14 99% of the Grdinary
Shares (n 1ssue on 13 June 2008 the authonty to expire no
Jater than the Annual General Meeung in 2009 The
Company will continue 10 buy back shares when the
Directors consider it to be i the mteresis of sharehalders as
a whole

Asset allocation

Al the year end, 98 9% of the Company's total assets were
mnvested 1w equities, with the remainng 1 1% beng held n
hquid assets The general policy of the Board 15 to be fully
invested

Dividend

The Board s dividend pehicy ensures the Company maintains
115 investment Lrust stalus by not retainmg more than 15%
of gross revenues To this end the Board of Directors has
proposed a cash dendend of 3 50 pence per Ordinary Share
2007 313 pence} This represents an increase of 11 8%
on 2007, which 15 panly aunbutable to the lower
shareholder base at the tme af the duadend record date as
a tesult of share buy backs and the tender offer

Discount

Durning the year, the Board has kept the discount under
continual review and retaned is night te buy back shares
when 1t beheved that this was i shareholeers best interests
having regard to the Company's imsesiment ebjechve
Dunng the year 63 3 million shares were bought back
(represeniing 11 8% of the shares in 1ssue a1 30 Apnl 2007)
for a total cost Lo the Company of £245 1 milhon This has
comnbuted 1o an uphft to the NAV per share of 1 34%

The Board and the AGM

As indicated m the Half Yearly Report of the Company to
31 October 2007 Sir Ronald Hampel and Charles Johnson
reured from the Board on 12 December 2007 In addition
Andrew Krught retired from the Board on 25 February 2008
and Peter Godsoe retired on 26 June 2008 Sir Ronnie
joined the Board 1n 2003 at the ume of nis significant
restructunng and provided wision and leadership n his role
as Chalrman [rom 22 Seplember 2004 to 12 December
2007 Charhe joined the Board in 1994 and provided
owstanding adwvice to the Board with s wide expenence of
mvestment and fund managemem Andrew and Peter also
jomned the Board in 2003 and provided an excellent
sounding board dunng Board discussions We shall miss Sir
Ronme, Charlie, Andrew and Peter and 1 would like 1o
thank them for their commmtment and comnbution dunng
those peniods

We welcomed Peier Harrison to the Board on 30 November
2007 and Chnstopher Brady and Gregary Johnsen 1o the
Board on 12 December 2007 Mr Harmson (56) Mr Brady
{53) and Mr Johnson (46) will be recommended to
shareholders for re election at the Annual General Meeting
on 25 September 2008 and their biographies appear on
pages 7 and 8

The Directors have also appointed Hamish Buchan (63} 10
the Board as a Director and as a member of the Audu
Committee with effect from 26 June 2008 A resoluuon to
re appoint tum as a Directar will be proposed at the AGM
Harmsh 1s an expenenced director of UK mvestment trusts
and former Chairman of the Associauon of invesiment
Companies His biographical details appear on page 7

Sir Peter Burt retires by rotanon and offers umself for re
election ai the AGM

The Board conunually evaluates its performance and
following the annual Directors appraisal process and on the
recommendauon ol the Nomunation Committee the Board
has approved all these Directors standing for te election

Finally, 1 would ltke to mvite you to the AGM which will
be held in 1 ondon at Stauoner’s Hall, on 25 September
2008 at 12 noon 1 hope that you will be able e attend this
meeting at which the Manager will make a shon
presentation and with my [ellow Directors 1 look forward
1o the oppertunuty of meeting you

Peter A Smith
26 June 2008

Indices above are shown on a total retumn basis in GBP
Sources Frankhn Templeton Investments and Standard &
Poors

TEMPLETON EMERGHING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC



BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PETER A SMITH (CHAIRMAN)

Peter Smuith (61) was appoutted to the Board on 17 May
2004 and was appownted Charman of the Board and a
member of the Nomimation and Remuneration
Commuttee on 12 December 2007 He 15 Chairman of
Savills PLC He 15 also a non executive ditecior of
Associated Briish Foods Plc N M Rothschild & Sons
Limuted and of The Equuable lafe Assurance Society He
was Senior Pariner of PricewaterhouseCoapers (“PwC"™)
mn the UK until 2000 and pror to the formation of PwC,
from the merger of Prnice Waterhouse and Coopers &
Lybrand, he had been the Chairman of Coopers &
Lybrand in the UK since 1994 Previously, he was a non
executive director of Safeway PLC and Chairman of RAC
PLC

He 15 an mdependent Director

Left to right Neil A Collins, Christopher D Brady,
Sir Peter Burt, Peter A Smith, Peter Q Harnison,
Gregory E Johnson

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC



CHRISTOPHER D BRADY

Chrstopher Brady (53) was appomnted to the Board on
12 December 2007 He 15 the founding partner and
Chaurman of The Chart Group Wuh over 25 years’
expenence 1n prvate equity, corporale finance and
capual markets he focuses on wdentfying and building
portfohe compantes through his extensive industry
relanonships and perspective Prior to Chan, he was a
partner with Lodestar Group, a merger advisory and
mvestment firm acquired by Societe Generale, and spent
eleven years n the Corporate Finance and Capual
Markets Departments of Lehman Brothers and Dillon
Read Mr Brady 1s a director of Birage, SeaMobile, U §
Hehicopter and several Charl invesument companes and
affihates

He 15 an mdependent Director

HAMISH N BUCHAN

Harush Buchan {63) was appointed (o the Board and a
member of the Audit Commttee on 26 June 2008 He s
Chairman of JPMorgan Amencan Investment Trust PLC
He 1s also a Divector of Aberforth Smaller Compantes
Trust plc Personal Assets Trust pl, Standard Life
European Private Fquity Trust ple The Scotush
Investment Trust ple and Scotush Communtry
Foundation Mr Buchan has been mvolved m the
mvestment trust sector for forty years mamnly as an
mvestment trust analyst and 15 currently a Director and
immediate past Chairman of the Association of
[nvestment Companies

He 15 an mdependent Director

SIR PETER BURTY

Sir Peter Burt (64) was appomted to the Beard on

1 QOciober 2004 and has been a member of the Audu
Commttee since 6 December 2004 He was appownted
the Sercr Independent Direcior and Chairman of the
Normunation and Remuneranon Committee on

12 December 2007 He 1s Chanrman of Promethean PLC
Previously, he was Chawman of ITV PLC and a Non
Executive Director of Royal Duich Shell PLC He joned
the Bank of Scotland 1n 1975, becormng head of us
Internanonal Division m 1985 Chief General Manager of
the Bank in 1988 and Group Chiel Executive m 1996
When the Bank merged with the Halfax in 2001 he
became Executive Deputy Charrman of HBOS unul he
retired n 2003

He 15 an independent Director

NEIL A COLLINS

Neil Collins (61} was appomted (o the Board and the
Audit Committee on 23 September 2006 and a member of
the Nomination and Rermuneration Commitlee on 26 June
2008 He has spent most ol his career n financial
journalism and was City Eduor of The Daily Telegraph for
nearly 20 years unul he retred from the posion in 2005
Priot to that he had been City Edior of the London
Everung Standard and The Sunday Times He s a Director
of Fmsbury Growth and Income Trust Ple

He 15 an mdependent Director

PETER C GODSOE"

Peter Godsoe (70) was appomnted to the Board on

15 December 2003 and has been a member of the Audit
Commuttee since 23 February 2004 He 1s currently an
mdependent Director of Barnck Gold, Lonmin Pl,
Ingersoll Rand Company, Rogers Commumcations Inc
and Onex Corporation Peter joned Scotiabank in 1966
He became General Manager of the Internauonal Division
1 1971 He was appointed an Execuuve Vice President
m 1980 and Vice Chairman and member of the Board of
Directots i 1982 In 1992, he was named President and
Chief Operaung Officer He became Chiel Executive
Officer 1n 1993 and was Chairman of the Board from
1995 unti! he retired m 2004

He 15 an independent Director
*Resigned 26 June 2008

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC



BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CONTINUED

PETER O HARRISON

Peter Harnson {56) was apponted to the Board on

30 November 2007 and became Chairman of the Audit
Commutiee ont 12 PDecember 2007 He was the UK Head
of Finanaal Services al KPMG for three years and a
member of the UK Management Team He reured from
full tme work with KPMG 1n 2002 as a Semwor Partner
m the Financial Services Division having thurty years
experience n the profession, twenty one of which was at
KPMG with fourteen years as a partner His chient work
ncluded providing business adwsory, audu and
regulatory assistance 10 a number of global retail banks,
fund managers and leasing busimesses as weli as an
overseas Govermnment Investment Agency He 1s Vice
Charrman and Chanrman of the Audn Commitiee at the
Saffron Building Society which he jomed as a Non
Execuuve Dhrector in November 2003 He 15 also a
Semor Adwisor and consultant with KPMG

He 15 an ndependent Director

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

GREGORY E JOHNSON

Gregory Johnson (46) was appomnted to the Board on

12 December 2007 He s Presdent and Chiel Executive
Officer of Frankhn Rescurces Ine and serves on the
Board of Directors He 1s also President of Templeion
Worldwide, Inc , Chiel txecutve Officer and President
of Templeton International Inc and serves as a Director
{for a number of subsidianes ol Franklin Resources, Inc
He 1s a member of 2 number of Frankhn Templeton’s
mtermnatenal fund boards Greg jomned Franklin in 1986
after working as a semor accountant for Coopers &
Lybrand He has served as President and Chairman of
the Board for Franklin Templeton Distributors, Inc,
Pressdent of Frankim Investment Adwvisory, LCC
President of FT Trust Company, Vice President of
Frankhn Adwisers, 1nc , co portfolio manager of Frankhin
Income Fund and Frankhn Unlites Fund and as an
nvestment analyst

Mr Johnson 1s the son of Charles Johmson a former
Director of TEMIT and currently Chairman and Director
of Frankhn Resources, Inc , and Chairman and Director
of various Frankhn Templeton funds



MANAGER’S REPORT & PORTFOLIO REVIEW

30 APRIL 2008

MANAGEMENT COMPANY

The Directors have appomted Templeton Asset
Management Lid (“TAML") as Investment Manager of
the Company

TAML, part of the Frankim Templeton Group (with
US$617 bullion n assets under management as at
30 Apnl 2008), has over 20 years of mvestment
experence 1n emerging markets and approximately
US$41 billion in assets under management

TAML's Executive Chairman, Mark Mobus has spent
over thurty years warking in Asia and other emerging
markets TAML currently has 66 employees supporung
Mark, consisung of 36 portfoho managersfanalysts from
18 natonalities who between them speak 19 different
languages They are located m 14 offices, Moscow
{Russia), Warsaw {Poland), Vienna (Austna) Duba
(United Arab Repubhic}, Istanbul (Turkey), Johannesburg
{South Afnca), Hong Kong (Chuna), Singapore, Shangha
{China), Seoul (South Korea), Mumbar (India}, Ho Cha
Mnh (Viemam), Rie de Janewo {Brazil), and Buenos
Aires (Argentna)

TAMLs Emergimg Markets Team recewves support {rom
the employees of Frankln Resources Inc , us ulumate
parent company and 1ts subsidiaries

OVERVIEW

Emergng market equities started the reporung peried on
an upbeat note with most markets recording positive

Mark Mobis and TAML's Emerging Markets team

returns Afier reaching a record high at the end of
October 2007, renewed concerns of a recession in the
US and us possihle impact on emerging markets,
coupled with global credit concerns, led markeis to
correct, elminating some of the gains recorded 1n the
earher part of the penod Most stock markets were
supported by a robust macroeconomic environment
surging money supply, nsmg commodity prices, stronger
emergmg marke( currencies, improved corporate earnings
and sigmfcant fund inflows in addwon, emerging
market countries are benefitng from large fiscal reserves
and strong macroeconemic trends The Investment
Manager 15 thus of the opumon that emerging marke:s
are m a much better posiion o weather a slowdown In
the US economy than n the past

Wathin the emerging markets assel class, Lain Amerncan
markets were among the wop performers as stronger
regional currencies, ligher commodity prices and greater
demand for metals and soft commaodtities supported
resource producers n markets such as Brazil In Asia,
China, India and Thailand were among the top
performng markets China and India continued 1o
benefit from sirong economuc growth, a large consumer
base and large foreign teserves Despile returning
double dign returns, South Kerea on the other hand
underperformed 1ts regional peers dunng the period In
Europe, the Russian market benefited from high
commodity pnces, rebust FDIE inflows and strong
ecanomic growth While Turkey ended the penod with

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC



MANAGER’S REPORT & PORTFOLIO REVIEW

CONTINUED

COMPANY PORTFOLIO DISTRIBUTION

a mnor gan, the South African market recorded a
dechne

PERFORMANCE ATTRIBUTION

The Company's performance, relatve to the MSCI
Emerging Markets (EM) mdex, benefited sigmbcantly
from us overweight positon and good steck selecuion 1n
Srazil An underweight posiwon m South Alnica and
overweight exposure 1 Thailand, coupled with good
stock selection in these markets as well as Russia, further
enhanced relauive performance

The largesi coninbutors to performance in Brazl were
overweight exposures 1o Vale Do Rio Doce, one of the
world’s biggest 1ron ore producers who are also engaged
in vanous murng activities, and leading commercial
banks, Unibanco and Banco Bradesce The Companys
absence from underperforming stocks such as Standard
Bank and Goldfields m South Africa and Russias
Sherbank, as well as an overweight exposure 1o Nonisk
Nickel m Russ:a, allowed these markets to record
positive attnibunion effecis Overweight positions in PTT
txploration & Production Pubhc (PTTEP), the oil and
natural gas exploration and production arm of PTT, Siam
Commercial Bank, a major commezaal bank in Thaland,
and Land & Houses, a premuer real estate developer mn
the country, also helped the portfohie By sector, good
stock selection n the banking, matenals and utihues
sectors as well as an underweight posiion in
sermconductor companes supportied performance

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

Conversely, detractors to relauve performance included
overweight positions in Turkey and Hungary as well as
selective mnvestments in South Korea Investments n
Akbank, Gedeon Richter and SK Energy resulied i the
largesi negative attribunion effects i these markets due
1o thewr underperformance relatve to the benchmark
MSCl EM mndex during the penod Remaiming confident
of the long term potenual of Akbank and SK Energy, the
Company ncreased its holdimgs in both stocks as recent
markets corrections provided an atiractive buying
opperturity Holdings in Gedeon Richter, however, were
reduced due to regulatory nsks By mdustry, an
underweight exposure 10 lelecommunications services
compames and the underpesformance of selecnve
holdings 1n the energy and pharmaceuucal sectors had a
negauve mpact on the Company

PORTFOLIO CHANGES &

INVESTMENT STRATEGIES

Fund raising for share buybacks required the sale of a
number of holdings during the penod The atamment of
target prices also led to selecuve sales These sales also
allowed the Company 1o focus on siocks deemed to be
relatively more atiractively valued within our invesiment
universe Holdings were thus reduced n Brazil, China
“Red (p” shares, Malaysia, Hungary, South Afnca,
Tawan and South Korea These sales reduced the
Company's exposure (o the wireless & miegrated
telecommunications services, elecinc unhuies, manne



poris & services, pharmaceuticals and tobacco sectors
Majer sales included Maxis Communications, a leading
telecommumcauions services provider i Malaysia that
the Company sold 1 a tender offer Gedeon Richter, a
major pharmaceutical producer i Hungary, and China
Merchants, a conglomerate specialising in ports and
related assei investments in Chima

The Company's search for undervalued siocks trading at
altracuve valuations led 10 selecuve mvestments in the
automobile manufactunng, metals & mimng, 17
consulung, ol & gas and banking seciors Energy stocks
are expecled to beneli from greater revenues and
earmings as a result of igh oil prices and greater global
energy demand Addinons inctuded PTT, Thailand s
leadhing mtegrated gas company, and 5K Energy, a major
player m South Koreas refining market

Growing demand for raw matenals in emerging markets,
especially markets such as China and Indha as well as
tugh commodity prices should suppon corporate
earmings m these natural resource companies Purchases
included Sesa Goa, a leading Inchan 1won ore miner and
exporter Alurmnum Corporation of China (Chalco),
China’s leading produccr of alumna and pnimary
alurminium products, and National Aluminum India's
largest alumina producer

Banking reforms and growing demand for inanaal
services made banks atiractive mvestments Banks are
also generally faung more lavourable busmess condions
such as increasmg fee mcome derived from cross selling
of Enancial products and lower non perlorming loans
due to economc recovery and fewer bankruptQes
[nvestmenis ncluded Turkey's Akbank, Indonesian
banks, Bank Danamon and Bank Cemiral Asia, and Faysal
Bank 1n Pakistan Moreover, the contmued trend of
outsouraing of services 10 Indian consulting compares
could also lead to migher corporate earmings Thus,
exposure 10 the sector was ncreased via the purchase of
Tata Consultancy a major IT consulimg company n
indha

ASIA

Chinas economy grew 10 6% year on year n the first
quarter of 2008, compared to the revised 11 9% for all
of 2007 The slowdown was mainly due to slower exporn
growth and heavy snowslorms 1 the earher part of the
year Inflation, while lower than the B 7% recorded n
February, was a relauvely tugh 8 3% year on year n
March as a result of high food prices Tighteming
measures contnued durng the reporting penod as the
government strived to curh nsmg wflationary pressures
China's forewgn reserves increased 40% year on year in
the first quarter of 2008 to US$1 7 tridhon i part due ta
trade and foreign direct mvesiment (FDI) nfllows FDI
Nows totalled US$74 7 ilhon up 7 5% year on year in
2007 pobucally, President Hu Jintao and Premier Wen
Jiabao were re elected for another live year term by the
National People s Congress in March

In South Korea, GDP increased 5 7% year on year in the
first quarter of 2008, higher than 2007's 4 9% growth,
mainly due 10 higher txports Growth, however, slowed
down on a quarter on quarter basis, as lower domestic
demand led private consumption growth (o reach a
three year low of 3 6% The government mamntained us
GDP growth forecast of 6% for 2008 despue
expectaniens of slower global growth this year Inflauon
remained a key concern for the government wath the CPI
mereasing 3 9% in March hgher than the Central Bank's
3 5% target for the fourth consecutive month Actual
FDI mflows iotalled US$7 7 billion in 2007 while {oreign
exchange reserves reached a new hugh of US$264 3
biliion 1 March In pohucs, Lee Myung bak was sworn
m as the new President following his election
December 2007 Lee pledged 1o boost economic growth
through tax cuts, deregulanon and pnvatisation

The Bank of Thailand raised ns 2008 GDP growth
forecast 10 4 8% to 6 0% from 4 5% to 6 0% due to the
governmen: s econpmc sumulus package and stronger
exports growth The economy grew 4 8% m 2007 The
government 1mplemented measures such as the
simphiication of red tape for nvestors and reduction n
the ime taken to process small and medum sized
project approvals, to attract local and foreygn investment
Pohucally, the People Power Party (PPP), supporters of
ousted Pnme Mimster Thaksin, won the most seats in
the parhamentary elections in December The new
parliament subsequently elected Samak Sundarave), the
head of the PPP, and ally of former Pnme Mimster
Thaksin Shinawatra, as Pnme Mimster
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LATIN AMERICA

Brazil's GDP grew 5 4% year on year in 2007 us [asiest
annual growth in three years Key dnivers included
strong nvestment and private consumpuon growth
Brazils financial posion conunued to sirengihen with
mternational reserves totallng US$193 9 billion i mud
March, compared to US$180 3 bilhon as of end 2007
Internaticnal tatings agency, Standard & Poor’s, ratsed
Brazils long term foreign currency sovereign crecht rating
from "BB+ 10 the mvestment grade of “BBE” due to the
country's improved growth prospects and fiscal
management policies Fitch and Moody's currently rate
the country al ene level below investment grade staus
After 18 mterest rates cuts totating 850 basis points, the
Centrai Bank embarked upon a ughtening pohcy n April
2008 by raising us key mterest rate by 50 basis ponis as
mflanon reached a two year high of 4 7% in March

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

SOUTHERN/EASTERN EUROPE

Government estimates pui Russias flirst quarier GDP
growth at B 0% year on year, in hne with the 8 1%
growth for all of 2007 This led the government to revise
is 2008 growth forecast lo 7 6% from 7 1% Key dnvers
mcluded rebust investment and consumpiion growth
Investment also remamned robust with FDI milows
wotalling US$47 billion m 2007 On the polical front, as
widely expected, First Deputy Pnme Mimster Droutry
Medvedev won the presidenual elections by an
overwheltmng majonty on March 2, 2008 Medvedev
conlirmed that his admumstravion would conunue the
policies set by President Puun’s government  Putin also
formally agreed 10 becorming the leader of the ruling
United Russia party and 1ts nomination for the position
of prime minister m May 2008 Given the party’s
majority n the Duma, Puun’s appomtment s assured

GDP growth in Turkey slowed to 4 5% year on year n
2007 lrom 6 9% w 2006 due to slower growth m the
last three quarters of the year The economy remamed
embrotled n polhucal instabihity for a large part of the
penod, firstly due Lo parhamentary elections and then a
power struggle between the ruling government party,
army, judictary and republican eppostion Despite bemng
te elected 1n a landshde victory m July 2007, Turkey's
chuel prosecutor, Abdurrahman Yalunkaya, petitioned
the consttilional court for the closure of the ruling
Justice and Developmert Party (AKP) as well as a 5 year
polincal han for 71 officals of the AKP ncluding
President AhdullahGul and Prime Mumster Tayyip
Erdogan Yalumkaya accuses the AKP of bemg “the
centre of ant: secular activittes  In the meanwhile
however, government locus has been drawn away from
much needed focus on reforms and financial markets



Mark Mobius works with some of his senior anclysts

have expenenced sigmficant volaulity as a resuit of the
uncertainty Turkey 1s currently one of the cheapest
markets 1n emerging markets which means that the
poliical uncertanty 1s already priced 1 us valuations
While poliical 1ssues may continue in the short term, we
reman confident of Turkey's longer term potential

OUTLOOK

While there has been much talk about emerging markets
decoupling from the US market, the Invesiment Manager
does not believe a complete decoupling 15 possible
because the world has become so mierdependent There
15 no question that the relanonships between natons are
growing because world trade and travel has been
growing Whereas 1n the past the US was the centre the
biggest economy 1n the world by far, this 1s no longer
the case While the US 15 sull the largest economy and
most mnfluenuat, this mfluence has gradually diminished
as other economies continue 1o grow at much faster
rates This has especially been the case in the emerging
markel countnes where we are seeing new centres of
economic wealth and growth China, Russia, Brazil and
Inda are clear examples Moreover, there 15 a lot of new
growth taking place n the world today In addwon o
emerging markets, fronuer markets such as Qatar, UAE,
Kazakhstan, Lithuama Nigena and Vietnam are all
forecast to grow 7% 1o 12% m 2008 The Investment

Going forward, the Investment Manager

therefore expects to see discerning
investors becoming more selective,
benefiting markets with stronger
fundamentals and better growth
prospects,

Manager will contimue to monnor these markets with a
view to future mvestment by the Company (all of these
countries have already heen approved lor mvestment by
the Board)

Addmenally, over the last 5 years, emerging markets
have demenstrated stronger economies For example,
Asia 15 the largest emerging markets region in the world
and home to some of the fastest growing economues
globally In fact, more than half of the world’s
population fives i Asia, providing the region with a
huge consumer base Per capna incomes have also been
nsing which leads to higher domestic consumption and
decreasmg dependence on exports to the US

While stock prices have fallen across the board recently
without much differentation and m empathy with what
was happering in the US, one must remember that
historically emerging markets are generally not strongly
correlated to the US Going forward, the Investment
Manager therefore expects 10 see discerming mnvesters
becermng more selective, benefiung markets with
stronger fundamentals and better growth prospects

1 Mark Mobius, Ph D
Templeton Asset Management Lid

26 June 2008
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PORTFOLIO SUMMARY
PORTFOLIO DISTRIBUTION AS AT 30 APRIL 2008 AND
30 APRIL 2007

All higures are v %

o &

¢ b = g “-% 5 E ‘% Tg T;

2 FE & 2 R 2 2 2 (2 2 . 2 F & of 2 o 3 &R

Consumer Discreiionan 39 11 02 07 10 69 359
Consumer Staples 09 04 20 01 03 37 38
Energy 17 53 69 22 16 56 27 16 276 247
Francials 110 14 41 36 09 210 BB
Healihcare 04 o4 22
industnals 0z 02 51 55 81
Information Technology a8 03 11 15
Matenals 71 35 36 29 12 10 193 158
Telecammumications Services  — - 02 14 02 18 16 T4
Unlines 19 25 14 16 24 o8 105
Total Fauities 939 987
Liguud Assets 1t 11 13
2008 Total 17 262 145 26 60 00 04 16 27 99 20 13103 07 90 78 22 11 100 100
2007 Toal 17 197 145 43 35 20 11 0O 25 89 18 31 122 23 74 82 55 13 l0C 100
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PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
BY GEOGRAPHY

Geographiual analysis (by country of incorporanon)

As at 30 Apnl 2008

Far Value**
Country Sector £000
AUSTRIA
OMV AGH Unhues 38,738
38,738

BRAZIL
Banco Bradesco SA, ADR pid *t Financial 114,517
Centrais Eletncas Brasileiras SA Uuhities 15249
Companhia Paranaense de Energla Copel, ADR, pid *T Uulities 28 225
Companha Vale do Rio Doce, ADR pfd , A*t Materials 165,340
Petroleo Brasilero SA, ADR, pfd *1 Energy 120,675
Souza Cruz SA Consumer Staples 21,102
Unibanco — Uriao de Bancos Brasileros SA, GDR, pfd *# Finangial 139,179

604,287
CHINA
Aturmninum Corp of Chuna Lid , H Materials 80,117
Bnlhance China Automotve Holdings Lud Consumer Discretionary 19,489
China Internatonal Manne Contamers (Group) Co ld, Industnals 3,568
China Petroleum and Chermical Corp, H knergy 81,430
Denway Motors Lid Consumer Discretionary 43214
PetroChma Co Lid , H Energy 79,727
Yanzhou Coal Mining Co Ltd , H Consumer Discretionary 26,286

333,831
HUNGARY
MOL Hungartan Ol and Gas Nynt Energy 49314
Richter Gedeon Nyrt Health Care 8779

58,093

INDIA
Hmdalco Industnes Lid Matenals 20,079
Naponal Alummium Co Ltd Malerials 37,151
O & Natural Gas Corp Lid Energy 35,589
Sesa Goa lid Matenals 24,263
Tata Consultancy Services Lid Informanon Technology 17.878

134,962

*US hsted stecks
tpld preferred shares

£These companies hase significant exposure 10 operations 1 emMETgINg markets

“»Ear value represents the bid value of a secunty as required by International Financial Reporting Standards
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PORTFOLIO HOLDINGS
BY GEOGRAPHY CONTINUED

Fair Value*™

Country Sector £'000
INDONESIA
PT Astra Internanonal Thk Consumer Discreucnary 22,453
PT Bank Central Asia Tbk Finanaal 6,926
PT Bank Danamon Indonesia Thk Fmanaal 13,280
42,659
MEXICO
Kimberly Clark de Mexico SAB de CV, A Consumer Staples 9,286
9,286
PAKISTAN
Faysal Bank Ltd Financial 10,607
MCB Bank Lid Financial 20,941
Pakistan Telecommumicauons Corp , A Telecommunication Services 5,436
36,984
POLAND
Grupa Lotos SA Uuhties 15,578
Polnord SA Industnals 4 200
Polski Koncern Naitowy Orlen SA Uulines 40,861
60,639
RUSSIA
Gazprom ADR* Energy 67 594
LUKOIL, ADR* Energy 55,783
Minmg and Metallurgical Co Nonlsk Nickel Materals 16,867
Miming and Metallurgical Co Nonisk Nickel, ADR* Materials 50,201
Mobile TeleSystemns, ADR* Telecommunication Services 31815
OAO TMK Energy 4903
227,163
SINGAPORE
Dary Farm International Holdings Lid Consumer Staples 45 986
45,986
SOUTH AFRICA
Anglo American PLC Malenals 26878
lger Brands Lid Consumer Staples 2727
29,605

*US hsted stocks
tpfd preferred shares
These companes have sigmficant exposure to operalions in emetging markets

**Fair value sepresents the bid value of a secunty as requirec by Internauenal Fmancial Reporting Standards
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Fair Value**

Country Sector £000
SOUTH KOREA
Hyunda) Development Co Industnals 119,066
Kangwon Land Inc Consumer Discretionary 24,646
SK Fnergy Co Lid Energy 61,303
SK Holdings Co Ltd Uuhnes 31,785
236,800
SWEDEN
Onflame Cosmetics SA, SDR¥ Consumer Staples 6,550
6,550
TAIWAN
Compal Commumcauons [nc Telecommunication Services 4,121
Novatek Microelectronics Corp Lid Informauon Technology 7.092
tamnan Enterpnses Co Lid Consumer Discretionary 4559
15,772
THAILAND
Kasikornbank Public Co Ltd | fgn Fuiancial 32,417
Kiatnakin Bank Public Co L, fgn Finanoal 0,904
Land and Houses Public Co Lud, [gn Consumer Discretionary 15,348
PTT Exploranion and Production Pubhc Co Lid | ign Energy 36423
PTT Public Co 1id, fgn Uunlies 37 748
Siam Cement Public Co Lud, fgn Matenials 22,727
Siam Commercial Bank Public Ca lid | Ign Financaal 50071
204,638
TURKEY
Akbank TAS Financial 82,436
Tupras Turkiye Petrol Rafinelen AS Unlites 56,272
Turkeell llensim Hizmetlen AS Telecommumtation Services 40223
178,931
TOTAL INVESTMENTS 2,264 926
OTHER NFT ASSF15 26,469
OTAL FQUITY 2,291,395

*US hsted s1ocks
tpld preferred shares

#These companites have sigrficant exposure L0 Operallons In emerging markels

**Eair value represents the bid value of a secunty as required by Intemational Financial Reporung Standards

——————
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TEN LARGEST INVESTMENTS
IN ORDER OF MARKET VALUE AS AT 30 APRIL

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

VALE RIO DOCE

% of Total Tau Value
Country Net Assets £000
Brazil 7122 16% 340

This Brazihan based company 15 one of the world’s
largest won ore producers that 1s also engaged m vanous
mITiAg acuvities

UNIBANCO

% of Total Fair Value
Country Net Assets L0060
Brazit 607 139179

One of Brazi¥'s largest financial conglomerates, providing
a full range of banking and financial services

PETROBRAS

% of Total Fair Value
Country Net Assets £000
Braz:l 527 120675

Brazil's nauonal o1l and gas company

HYUNDAI DEVELOPMENT

% of Total Tar Value
Country Net Asscts L000
South Korea 5120 119 066

One of the leacing residenual property developers
m Korea

BANCO BRADESCO

% af Total Fair Value
Country Net Assets L000
Brazil 500 114 517

One of Brazils largest finanvial conglomerates, providing
a [ull range of banking and financial services



Mark Mobius of one of the Vale Rio

Doce mines
AKBANK
% of Total Fair Vaiye
Country Nel Assets £000
lurkey 360 82 436

One of Turkey s largest privately owncd commeraial
banks, providing a full range of banking and
financial services

CHINA PETROLEUM AND CHEMICAL CORP

% of Tolal Teir Value
Country Net Assets L0000
China 355 81430

One of the largest miegrated energy companies in China

ALUMINUM CORP OF CHINA

% of Total Farr Value
Country Nt Assits L0002
Chimy 350 80117

Aluminum Covporanon of Chuna Limned and us
subsidhanes engage n bauxte miming alumina refining,
and alumimum smelting businesses in the Peoples
Republhic of China

PETROCHINA

% of Total Fair Value
Country Ner Assets £000
China 348 79 727

China’s largest ol and gas company w terms of reserves
The company 1s also diversifying into markeung and
downstream activites

GAZPROM

% of Total Fatr Value
Country Net Assels £000
Russia 265 67 594

Gazprom 15 the largest producer of natural gas m the
world 1 terms of reserves and production

Total Top Ten Holdings 1030081
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Directors subm:t thewr Annual Report together with the hinancial statements of the Company for the year ended
30 Apnl 2008

BUSINESS REVIEW

Principal Activity and Investment Status

The Company 15 tegistered as a public hmited company i terms of the Compares Act 1985 The Company 15 an
nvestment company under Section 833 of the Compames Act 2006

In the opinton of the Directors, the Company has directed 1ts affairs so 25 to be able to continue 10 seek approval as
an mvestment Lrust from the HM Revenue & Customs under section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act
1988 each year

Investment Policy

The objective of the Company 1s to previde long term capital appreciation for s shareholders through mvestment in
companies operaling In emerging markets or whose stocks are Listed on the stock markets of such countnes No
matenal change wilt be made to this pohcy witheut shareholder approval

Risk 15 spread by mvestng m a number of holdings some of which themselves are diversified companues

Where possible mvestment will generally be made directly in the stock markets of emerging countnies However,
mvestment 1 companies listed on more developed stock exchanges may also be made where those companies have a
significant source of their revenue from emerging countres although the Investment Manager does not anucipate
ymvesting a sigmficant part of the Company’s assets m such compames Where the Investment Manager determines
appropnale, for example to gam access to markets closed to foreign portlolio mvestors, mvestment may be made 1n
emergmg markets through collective mvestment schemes although such mvesiment 1s not hkely to be substanual

In any event, Templeton Asset Managemen: Lid (“TAML” or the “lnvestment Manager™), as the Investment Manager to
the Company, wili invest diecily only m countnes where 1t 15 sausfied that acceptable custodial and other
arrangements are n place to safeguard TEMIT's mvestments and n companies with percerved sansfactory procedures

It 1s miended ihat the Company’s funds wil! normally be mnvested 1 equuty investments although the Invesument
Manager may nvest m equity related mvestments {such as convertibles) where there are perceived to be advaniages

The Investment Manager employs a bottom up, value orented, long term approach to nvesting It focuses on the
market price of a company's securiies relauve 1o the Investment Manager’s evaluauion of the company's long term
eamings, asset value and cash flow potential As 1t looks for vestment,  focuses on speaific companmes and
undertakes m depth research Lo construct an action st from which 1t makes s buy decisions Before a purchase 15
made, 1t locks at the companys potential earnmgs and growth over a five year honzon Duning its analysis, it also
considers the company’s position m 1ts sector, the economic framework and poliical environment

The portfoho will frequently be over weight or under we:ght against the imdices This 1s consistent with 1s mvestment
approach of long term value mvesting The Investment Manager evaluales mvestment opporiunities with updated
financia ratios on a daily basis, and adjusts the portfolo to seek opumal exposures to stocks which are assessed Lo be
best bargams 1n global emerging markets

The Investment Manager searches for well managed compares assessed as under valued, especally those that are
out of favour among mvesiors On the other hand, the Ivestment Manager sells companues that, m its epmion,
are over valued, typically when the earmngs prospects or underlying net asset values are fully recogmsed by other
IMVESLOTS

The Investment Manager s mvestment research and portfolic construction processes may be summansed m five steps

(1) 1denusfy Opportuniies — A master hst 15 compiled which 15 screened for secunues that meet certam market
capitahisauen and hiquidity critena as determmined by the Investment Manager
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
CONTINUED

(2) Analyse Companies — A detailed analysis of the stock’s industry and Anancial accounts 15 undertaken along with a
visit to the company 1o interview management, assess its quahty of product or services, analyse cusiomers and
competitors and ascertamn compenitive advantage,

(3) Construct Action List - Each stock on this st has a specified buy and sell target This selectuion hst 15 a dynam.
list thar 15 monitored contimually,

(4) Allocaic Portfoho — On a weekly basis the portfolio 15 reviewed for consistency and 1o ensure that it complies with
the Investment Manager's investment committee guidehnes, and

{5) Evaluate and Monnor Portfohie — Once the portfoho has been construcied, each investment within the portloho 1s
reviewed agamst price targets set [or the secunues These targets are conunually updated with compansons made
with the sector that the secunty operates n Contact 1s alsoc mamntamned wath the company and 1s supphers and
staff

The general policy of the Board 15 to be fully invesied However in response to market conditions the [nvestment
Manager may decide 1o hold funds temporanty n cash or other appropnate assets

Key Performance Indicaiors
The following are considered key pesformance mdicators for the Company

e the retumn m nel assei value per share compared to uts benchmarks
e the movement m share price and discount, and

» the total expense ratio

Performance
The Investment Manager employs a value nvesting strategy and purchases stecks tradmg at less than therr assessed
value The TEMIT portfoho may therefore differ sigmficantly from the benchmark indices

In the year 1o 30 Apnl 2008, the Company’s net asset value per share returned 35 7% This was ahead of both the
Companys benchmarks The MSCI Emerging Markets Index increased by 27 0% and the S&PAFCI Composie Index
rose by 25 6% Since incepuion, the net asset value of TEMIT has nsen by 1,479 4% compare with a nse of 673 4%
for the MSC1 Emerging Markets [ndex and 707 8% for the S&P/IFC] Composite Index

The Charrman’s Statement on pages 4 and 5 and the Manager’s Report on pages 9 1o 13 mchade a review of the main
developments durng the year and the mvestment outlook

Share Capital and Discount
The Board 1s aware that discount volauly 1s unwelcome 1o many shareholders and has powers to buy back the
Company s shares as a discount control mechamsm when 1115 1n the best mteresis of the Company’s shareholders

The share price of TEMIT mereased by 33 8% to 438 00p as at 30 Apnl 2008 [rom 327 25p as at 30 April 2007
Markel conditions have seen large fuctuations n the discount dunng the year from a high of 155% 1o a low of 62%
As al 30 Apri} 2008 the discount had widencd to 9 6% from 8 9% at 30 Apnl 2007

Durmng the year the Company bought back and cancelled 63 3 million Ordinary Shares [or a total cost of
£245 1 milhon which represented 11 5% of the share capital m 1ssue al the start of the year

The Board held extensive discussions wath major shareholders n recent months following the lack of agreement
among shareholders ldst year over the best means of providing an exit opportunity to those shareholders who wish o
reahse pan or all of their investment

In these discussions, 1t became apparent that while a group of shareholders wished to dispose of all of their
mvestment, others indicated a desire to reduce thewr holding and many mdicated a wish for hutle or no change
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SHARE PRICE DISCOUNT TO NET ASSET VALUE

After careful consideravon, the Board concluded that, whilst many shareholders wished the Company would maintain
the status quo, 1t should seek 1o bnng supply and demand closer 10 an equilibnum by prowiding an exit opporiunty
10 those sharcholders who wished to realise thewr mvestment without adversely affecting continuing shareholders

The Board believed that the best way to achieve this was by way of a tender offer The size and charactenstics of the
tender offer were set to permit each group of shareholders to achieve their objectives as far as possible

The tender offer proposals were approved at an EGM of the Company on 13 June 2008 As a result, 141 8 milhon
Ordmary Shares will be bought back and cancelled at a discount of 4% to the NAV

in the peniod from 1 May 2008 to 18 June 2008, no shares were bought back and cancelled

Expense Ralio
The Total Expense Rauo has nsen from 1 32% at 30 Apni 2007 to 133% a1 30 April 2008 This 1s due 1o additional
expenses which were mcurred as part of the Company’s reorganisaiion proposals brought to shareholders in July 2007

Results and Dividends
The profit for the year was £626 3 million (2007 £74 1 ynlhion) of which £19 8 mulhon (2007 £22 3 mulhon} was
revenue profit The [ull results for the Company are disclosed in the Income Stalemem on page 38

Followng the tender offer whereby 30% of the Company s share capital was bought back and cancelled, and i order
1o maimtan the Company s staius as an Investment Trust, the total amount distnbutable 15 calculated with reference to
the reduced amount of shares in 1ssue after the tender offer

The Directors propose an ordinary diidend of 3 50 pence per Ordinary Share (2007 3 13p) making a total dividend
for 2008 of £12 4 mulian (2007 £16 8mlhon) If approved by shareholders of the Annual General Meetng to be
held on 25 September 2008, this will be payable on 1 October 2008 to shareholders on the regster at close of
business on 29 August 2008

Gearmg
The Board has agreed that n exceptional circumstances, TEMIT may borrow up to 10% of s net assets The use of
geanng 1s discussed by the Board and the Investment Manager regularly and 1s momitored on a dally basis

During the perod, the Company utithsed a short term overdraft facility with JPMorgan 10 facilitaie the share buy back
programme and secure an orderly realisation of investments for the purpose The maximum borrowing was
£25 mmilion 10 November 2007

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The prncipal nisks facing the Company are summansed below The number and spread of mvestments n TEMIT's
portfoho 15 miended to reduce the degree of nsk, however, mvestors should be aware of the nisks associated with
TEMIT's invesiment objecuves

Market nsk

Many of the companies in which TEMIT does or may mnvest are, by reason of the locanons m which they operate,
exposed 1o the nsk of polincal or econorme change In addtion, exchange control, tax or other regutations introduced
i any country m which TEMIT invests may affect us mcome and the value and markeiability of 1ts mvestments
Currency fluctuaions may also affect the value of 1ts mvestments and the mncome denved therefrom, and mnvestors n
emerging markets can face settiement and custodial problems Furthermore compames in emerging markets are not
always subject 10 accountmg, auditmg and financal standards which are equivalent to those apphcable i the United
Kingdom and there may also be less governmenl supervisicn and regulation These nsks can ncrease the potential for
lasses n the Company and affect us share price For these reasons a long term approach o Invesiing i emerguig
markeis 15 taken
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In recent years many kmerging Market stock markets have experienced considerable pnice appreciation, and are at,
near, ot above the high pomts of therr histonc valuations Emerging Markets have in the pasi been subject to greater
price volatihty and rapid and severe re pricing than developed markets In such siuations, the carrelation between
different stocks m ihe same market, and between vanous Emergmg Markets and ceuntnes has been shown Lo mcrease,
reducing the benefits that civersification between securines industries, markets and countres generally provides

Investment nsk

in addition, the Company may invest a greater pornon of 1ts assels n the secunues of one 1ssuer, secunuies domiciled
m a particular country, or secunties within one industry group than other types of fund mvestments As a result, 1t
may be more sensiuve Lo econemuc, business pohtical or other changes affecting smular 1ssues or secunues, which
may result in greater lluctuation i the value of the portfolio

Currency nsk

I 15 important to recogmse the effect of currency movements on TEMIT's performance In general, 1f the value of
sterhng increases compared with a foreign currency, an invesument traded n that foreign currency will decrease
value because 1 will be worth fewer UK pounds This can have a negauve effect on fund performance Conversely,
when, mn general, sterling weakens 1n relation o a foreygn cwency, mvestments traded 11 that foreign currency wall
ncrease m value, which can contribute to an mmprovement n the Company’s performance

Regulatory nsk

Il 15 also worth noting that the Company operates n a complex regulatory environment and faces a number of
regulatory nisks A breach of Section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Acl 1988 would result in the
Company being subject 10 capual gans tax on portioho mvestments Breaches of other regulauons such as the ULKA
Listing Rules, could lead to a number of detnmental ouicomes and reputancnal damage

Key personnel

The ability of the Company Lo achieve 1ts nvestmemt objecuve 1s sigmficantly dependent upon the experuse of the
Investment Manager and us abthty to auract and retain suttable stafl The Company 15 also tehant upon the skills of its
Directors and the loss of any of these indviduals could reduce s ability to achieve s planned mvestment objectives
The Company and the Investment Manager have endeavoured to ensure that the pnincipal members of therr
management teams are swiably mcentivised, but the retention of such stafl cannot be guaranteed

Operanonal risk

Like many other mvestment trust companies, the Company has no employees The Company therefore relies up on
the services provided by third parues and 15 dependent upon the control systems of the Investment Manager and the
Company s service providers The secunty, for example, of the Company's assets, dealing procedures, accounting
records and mamtenance of regulatory and legal requirements depend on the effecuve operation of these systems
These are regularly tested and monttored and an mternal control report, which mcludes an assessment of nsks
together with an overview of procedures lo milgate such nisks, 15 prepared by the Secretary and Admmistrator and
reviewed by the Audit Committee annually The custodian {JP Morgan) produces an annual SAS 70 report which 15
reviewed by its audnors and gives assurance regarding the eflective operanon of controls

The Direciors have sought to ensure that the Company s service providers have adopied an appropnate framework of
controls which 1s designed 10 momitor the principal nisks facng the Company, and to provide a momtonng system to
enable the Directors 1o mingate these rnsks

Further nformation on the nsks that TEMIT 1s subject to 15 also detatled in Note 14 of the Notes to the Financial
Staternernis
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FINANCIAL
Share Capual
Changes  the share capital of the Company are set out n Note 10 of the Notes to the Financia! Statements

Going Concern
The Directors are saushied that the Company has adequate resources to conunue m operational existence for the
foreseeable future and, as such, a going concem basis 15 appreprate n prepanng the Financial Statements

Creditor Payment Pohey

fnvestment transactions are setiled by the Company n accordance with the terms and condiuons of the relevant
market While the Company follows no formal code, s policy 15 Lo agree the terms of payment al the start of business
and ensure that the supplier 1s aware of the ierms of payment Payment 1s made i accordance with these terms
provided that the supplier 1s also complying wath all the relevant 1erms and condinons For the year ended 30 Apnl
2008 the number of trade (broker) creditor days was 1 day (2007 1 day)

Auditors

Grant Thomiton UK LLP have expressed their willingness conunue 1n office as auditors and resolutions proposing s
re appomtment and authansing the Directors to determine 1is remuneration for the ensumy year will be submutted at
the Annual General Meeting

The Directors who held office at the date of approval of this Directors’ Report confirm that, so far as they are each
aware, there 15 no relevant aucht informanion of which the Company’s auditors were unaware and that each Director
had taken all steps that he ought 1o have taken as a Director to make lumself aware of any relevant audit informaten
and 1o estabhsh thal the Company's auditors were aware of that mformation

Statement of Directors’ Responsibilittes in respect of the Financial Statements
The Directors are tespensible for prepanng the Annual Report and Accounts i accordance with applicable Urnuted
Kingdoem law and regulalions

Company law requires the Directors to prepare the financal statements for each financial year Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with IFRS as adopted by the EU

The Enanoal statements are required by law and TFRS as adopted by the EU to present fairly the financial position of
the Company and the performance for that penod The Companies Act 1985 provides 1n relanon 1o such fmancial
statements that references n the relevant part of that Act to financial statements giving a true and fair view are
references 1o their achieving a fair presentanon

In prepanng the {inancial statemnents, the Directors are required to
e <elect suuable accounung pohaes and then apply them consistently,
o make judgments and esumates that are reasonable and prudent,
e tate whether the financial statements have been prepared n accordance with 1FRS, as adopted by the EU and

e prepare the finanual statements on a going concern basis unless 1t 15 mappropnate Lo presume that the
Company will continue m busimess

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records that disclose with reasonablc accuracy at any hme
the financial posiien of the Company and enable them to ensure that us fmancial statements comply with the
Companes Act 1985 They are also responsible for the system of nternat control, for saleguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for 1aking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other wregulanies
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The Directors 1o the best of their knowledge, state that

e the financial statements prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally accepted Accounung Practice
give a true and fair view of the assets habiliies financial position and profit or loss of the Company and

e the Report of the Directors includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the
position of the Company together with a descniption of the principal nsks and uncertainties that 1t faces

Under applicable law and regulauons, the Directors are also responsible for prepanng a Directors’ Report, Direciors
Remuneration Report and the Corporate Governance Statement that comply wath that law and those regulations The
Annual Report 15 available on the Company’s website (www temit co uk)

Legslaton 1 the United Kingdom goverming the preparation and dissermination of the fimancial statements and other
nformation included n annual reponts may differ from legislation m other junsdictions

DIRECTORS

Dhrectors

The Board currently compnses seven Non Executive Directors six of whom are mdependent from Frankln Templelon
fnvestments, the group of companies assoaated with the Company s Invesiment Manager The Chairman s Non
Executne and mdependent from the Investment Manager The Directors” biographies are set out on pages 6 to 8

The followng were Directors dunng the year 10 30 Apnl 2008

Peter A Smuth Sir Peter Burt

Neil A Collins Peter O Harnson (appotnted 30 November 2007)
Chnstopher D Brady (appomted 12 December 2007)  Gregory E Johnson (appeinted 12 December 2007}
Charles B Johnson (resigned 12 December 2007) Sir Ronald Hampel (resigned 12 December 2007)
Peter C Godsoe OC (resigned 26 June 2008) Andrew 5 B Kmght {resigned 23 February 2008)

The Company 1dentified suitable candidates or the Board alter consultation with appropnate wmdmiduals operaung n
the 1nvestment trust industry External search consultants were not appomied and no formal adverisimg was carned
out

Peter Godsoe resigned as a Director and a member of the Audit Commtiee on 26 June 2008 and Hamush Buchan was
appomted as a Dircctor and a member of the Audi Commutee on 26 June 2008

Mr Johnson 1s President and Chiel Executive Officer of Frankhn Resources Inc He s also President of Templeton
Warldwide Inc, the parent company of the Investment Manager He 1s thurefore not an mdependent Director

The Company’s Articles of Association require newly appomted Directors to submit themselves fer election by
shareholders at the next Annual General Meetmg and Directors are then subject to re election at mtervals of no more
than three years All Directors serving longer than nine years must offer themselves for annual re election

Sir Peter Burt reures by rotation as a Director and offers lamself for re election as required under the Company s
Articles ol Association

Peter Harmnson, Chnstopher Brady, Gregory Johnson and Hanush Buchan offer themselves for re elecnon as Directors
as required under the Company’s Arixcles of Assaciation The Board recommends the e election of Sir Peter Burt,
Peter Harnson, Chnstepher Brady, Gregory Johnson and Hamish Buchan, whose biographies are set out n this Annual
Report as they will continue to provide the Company with valuable gumidance, expenence and support

Each Director has a letter of appointment from the Company Other than previusly stated, no Direcior was a party 1o
or had an nterest 1n any contract or arrangement with the Company at any ume during the year

The Directors meet quarterly and retam {ull and eflective control over the Company through the monitonng of the
management team of the Investment Manager, and FTIML (the Secretary and Adrrmstrator)  he Board 1s responsible
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for nvestment policy and has a schedule of matters reserved for the resoluuon of the Directors for safeguarding
shareholders’ mvestment and the Company's assets

The prmary focus of the Directors a1 the quarterly board meeungs 1s a review of the mvestment performance of the
Company and assoniated matters such as geanng, asset allocanon, marketing/investor relations, peer group information
and ndustry 1ssues The Board alse reviews the wvestment mandate long lerm vestment strategy, performance of
the Company and the appropnate guidelnes within which the Invesiment Manager should operale

The table below hsts the number of Board and Commuttee meenngs attended by each Direcior Duning the year there
were 7 Board Meetmgs, 4 Audn Commuitee Megungs and 2 Nommation and Remuneration Commiitee Meeting

Nomunation and

Board Meentings Audit Commuitee Remuneration Committee

Dhrector Attended Meetings Attended Meeungs Attended

*Chnstopher D Brady 4 N/A N/A
Sir Peter Burt 6 2 2

Neil A Collins 7 4 N/A

'Peter O Harnson 5 2 N/A
*Gregory E Johnson 3 N/A N/A
Peter A Smuth 7 3 N/A

3Sir Ronald Hampel 4 N/A 2
*Charles B Johnson 4 N/A N/A
*Andrew 5 B Kmght 4 N/A N/A
*Peter C Lodsoe, OC 5 3 N/A

! Peter © Harnson was appoinied on 30 November 2007

2 Chnstopher D Brady and Greg johnson were appomied on 12 December 2007

* Sir Ronald Hampel and Charles B Johnson resigned on 12 December 2007

* Andrew 5 B Kmight resigned on 25 February 2008

3 Peter Godsoe resigned on 26 June 2008

In add:tion to the scheduled Board and Commuttee meetings, there have been a number of add:tional meetings of the
Directors 1o formulate and finalise the capital reorgarusation proposals m 2007 and the tender offer proposals m 2008
Throughout this process the Charrman and all of the Directors have contnbuted sigmhcant addiional time
performing their tole, aitending such addiional meetngs, when possible

Nonunation and Remuneration Committee

The Board established a Nomimattan and Remuneration Commuttee mn February 2002, which currently compnses

Sir Peter Burt (appownted Chairman of the Nommation and Remuneration Commitiee on 12 December 2007) and
Peter Smuth (appeinted member of the Nominanon and Remuneranon Commitiee on 12 December 2007} and Neil
Collins (appomted member of the Nomnanon and Remunerauion Committee on 26 June 2008) Sir Ronald Hampel
was a member of the Nommatuon and Remuneration Committee unil his resignauon from the Board on 12 December
2007 In appointing Peter Harnson, Chnstopher Brady, Gregory Jehnson and Harmush Buchan as Direclors the
Nomumnation and Remuneration Commttee evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and expenence on the Board and
prepared a descnpuion of the role and capabilities required for these parncular appomtments In appoinung Peter
Smuth as Charman the Nommauon and Remuneration Commuttee evaluated the balance of skills, knowledge and
expenence on the Board and prepared a descniption of the role and capabilities required for this appomtment A job
speuficanion has been preparcd by the Nommnation and Remuneraion Committee and Peter Smuth's other sigmificant
commitments weze re disclosed 10 the Board prior to his appotmment  The role of the Nommnation and Remuneration
Commutiee 1s to Teview reguiarly the Board stmcture, size and composition and make tecommendations to the Board
with regard to any adjustments that seem appropriate, to consider the rotation and renewal of the Board, approve the
candidate specification for all Board appomntments, approve the process by which suitable candidates are denufied and
short sted, and to nomunate candidates for consideration by the full Board, whose responsibtinty 1t 1s formally 10 make
appomntiments
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In additon the Commiltee reviews the level of Directors’ fees penodically relative 1o other comparable companes and
n the hight of the Directors’ responsibilities

A copy of the terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 15 available to shareholders on the
TEMIT webstte {www termit co uk) or on request via Client Dealer Services at Franklin Templeton Investment
Management Limted using the contact detalls provided on the mside back cover of this report

Perjormance Evaluation

The Board has undertaken a formal evaluation of its own performance and that of us Commtiees and mdwidual
Directors 1ncluding the Chairman The Board has also considered the independence of each Director The evaluation of
the Board of its Commuttees and the performance of imdwadual Directors, 1s carned out first through discussions
between the Chairman and each Director on an indswidual basis The C hairman has been evaluated by ns fellow
Directors led by Sir Peter Burt the Semor [ndependent Direcior and such evaluanons shali continue to take place at
least annually Thereafter the Board meets as a group to review the findings The performance and cost of service
providers are considered as regular tems annually on the Board s agenda

Informanon, Induction and Professtonal Development

The Board 15 suppled, via the Company Secretary, with regular imnformation to enable the Directors to discharge therr
duties The new Directors were provided with detaled mlormation on the performance and background of the
Companv and bnefings from Franklin Templeton management and the Company’s adwisers on jounung the Board The
induction process was adapted Lo recognise the expenence and gquahficanons of the new Directors The Company
Secretary provides the Board with regular updates on regulatory 1ssues and on the latest corporate governance rules
and guidelines

Directors’ appointment letters

Each of the Directors has an appointment letter with the Company and such letters are available for mspection at the
Company's registered affice’ The terms of therr appointment provide that a Director wall be subject to re election at
the first annual general meenng after thewr appomntment and at least every three years afier that The terms alse
provide that a Director may be removed without notice and that compensation will not be due on leaving office

Indemnijication and Insurance

The Company entered mto deeds of indemmty with each of the Directors prior 1o the date of this report These are
quahfymng third party mdemmnity provisions and are n force as at the date of this repert This information 15 disclosed
in accordance with secuons 236(2) and 236{3) of the Compames Act 2006 The Company mamtams appropnate
msurance cover m respect of legal acton agamnst the Directors

Remuneration ‘
Details of the remuneranon pohicy are set out n the Directors’ Remuneranon Report The Board s pohey 1s that the

remuneration of Nen Executive Directors shoutd reflect the expenence of the Board as a whole and be fair and

comparable 1o that of other investment trusts simlar in size, caputal structure and wvestment objective

The fees for the Non Execunve Directors are currently determined wathin the imiis set out m the Company's Articles
of Association, and they are not eligible for bonuses, pension benefits, share options, long term incentive sthemes or
other benefits 1n accordance with other long standing investment trusts

The Company’s policy on Directors’ remuneration, together with details of the remuneration of each Director who
served i the year 15 detaled 1n the Directors’ Remuneration Report on page 34

Apart from the Directors TEMIT uself has no employees and therefore no retirement or health scheme obhgations or
pohcies n respect ef employment, including the employment of disabled persons
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No Director had noufied the Company of any beneficial mierest (including any fammly merest) exising either at the
begmning or at the end of the year to 30 Apnl 2008 i the Company’s Ordinary Shares save for the following
Direciors

30 Aprid 2008 30 Apnl 2007
Sir Ronald Hampel (resigned 12 December 2007)
Ordinary Shares N/A 21,618
Sir Peter Burt
Ordinary Shares 4,000 4.000
Andrew S B Kmight (resigned 25 February 2008)
Ordinary Shares N/A 11,000
Neil A Colhins
Ordinary Shares 7,000 7,000

The Company has not received notification of any changes in the above mterests as al 18 June 2008

Substantial Shareholdings

As at 18 June 2008 the Company had been noufied that the following were nteresied n 3% or more of the 1ssued
share capital of the Company The substanual shareholder noufications are based on the expecied outcome once the
tender proposals are fully implemented around end July 2008 using the 1ssued share capnal figure of 3309 milhon

Number
Name of Shares Percentage
City of London 50,378,491 1523
Legal & General Investment Management 20,273,398 609
Templeton Investment Plan 16,290,962 402
Lazard Asset Management LLC Group 13,386 007 405

SERVICE PROVIDERS

Investment Manager

Durng the year, Templeton Asset Management Lid (“TAML") acted as [nvestment Manager to the Company under an
\nvestment management agreement and recewved from the Company a monthly fee ai an annua! rate of 100% of the
total net assets of the Company

The investment management agreement between the Company and TAML 15 of an unhmuted duration and may be
termmated by erther party but in cenamn arcumstances the Company may be required 1o pay compensation to TAML
of an amount up to one years management fee Compensauion 1s not payable 1 at least one ycar's notice of
termination 15 given

The Board considers the arrangements flor the provision of investment management services 1o the Company on an
ongoing basis and a formal review 1s conducted annually When assessing the performance of the Invesiment Manager,
the Board beheves 1t 15 appropnate to make this assessment over a medium 1o long term umeframe which s m
accordance with the long term approach taken to mvestment In the opiruon of the Direciors, the conunuing
appomtment of TAML on the agreed terms 15 1n the best mterests of the shareholders as a whole The Directors believe
that TAML 15 well posioned to act as Investment Manager to the Company and weil resourced to 1dentify attractive
Investment opportuniies
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Secretanal and Admmistration Managers
Dunng the year FTIML acted as secreiary and admimstrator of the Company The fee pad to FTIML for this 15 an
annual rate of 0 20% of the 1otal net asseis of the Company, payable monthly

The agreement between the Company and FTIML may be termnated by either party bul in certain arcumstances the
Company may be required to pay compensation 1o FTIML of an amount up 1o one year's secretanal and
admimistration fee Compensation is not payable if at least one years notice of termunauon 1s given The Directors also
keep under annua! review the performance of FTIML as secretanal and admmstranon managers

Custodian

JPMorgan Chase Bank acts as global custodian to the Company and receives a fee for the provision of custody and
nomnee services 1o the Company under a custody agreement (which contams provision for the exclusion or hmitation
of hability as set out m the cusiody agreement) The custody agreement may be terminated by eiher party giving the
other 60 days’ nouce

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company 15 committed to high standards of corporate governance The Board s accountable 10 the shareholders
for good governance and this statement describes how the Company apphes the prnciples :denufied n the Combimed
Cede on Corporate Governance 2006 1t aiso makes reference Lo the Company s adherence to the Code of Corporate
Governance of the Association of Investment Compames {"AIC™)

Compliance with the Combined Code on Corporate Governance 2006
The Board considers that the Company has comphed with the relevant provisiens of Section 1 of the Combined Code
on Corporate Governance 2006 throughout the year ended 30 Apnl 2008

AIC Code of Corporate Governance 2007 (the “AIC Code”)

The Company 15 a member of the AIC The Beard considers that the Company adheres to the pnnciples and follows
the recommendanons of the AIC Code and where appropriate, u provides explanations why and/or detailed the steps
1t witends 1o take 10 bring the Company nio hne m the future By reporting aganst the AIC Code and by following
the AlC's Corperate Governance Guide for Investment Comparues {the “AIC Guide™, the Company 1s meeting 1ts
obligations under the Combined Code and paragraph ¢ 8 6 of the Lisung Rules and as such the Company 15 not
requited to report further on 1ssues contaned m the Combmed Code which are not relevant te the Company as
explained n the AIC Gude

Additional Information for New Zealand Shareholders
As a result of a requirement for Overseas Issuers hsted on the New Zealand Stock Exchange, the following should be
noted by New Zealand Shareholders

(a) The corporate govemnance Tules and principles mn TEMIT's home exchange junsdicnon i the United Kingdom may
matenally dhffer from the New Zealand Stock Exchange corporate govemance rules and the pnnaiples of the
Corporate Governance Best Practice Code

(b} Investors may find more inlormation about the corporate governance and principles of TEMIT s home
exchange m the United Kingdom m the above Corporate Governance stalement anc online at
www fre org uk/corporate/combinedcode cfm

Schedule of Reserved Matters

The Board has formally adopted a Schedule of Reserved Matters which detals the matters which the Board has agreed
are specibically reserved 10 them for their collecuve deaision These matters nclude, mter alia, approval of the hall yearly
and annual financial statements, recommendanion of the final dividend, approval of any prehmnary announcements of
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the Company approval of any changes to the Company’s mvestment objective and/or policy, appomntment or removal
of the Company s Investment Manager or 1ts Secretary and Admimstrator Board membership and Board commttee
membership and any major changes to the wvestment objective, philosophy or pohey of the Company, other than any
such changes delegated to the [nvestment Manager under the Investment Management Agreement

The day 1o day mvestment management of the portfolio of the Company 15 delegated 10 the Investment Manager who
manages the porifolio n accordance with the investment objectives of the Company as set by the Board

Soctal, Environmental & Ethical Pohcy

As an investment trust, the Company has no direct social or environmental respensibihties Tis ethcal policy 1s focused
on ensuning that us funds are properly managed and mvested within the guidelmes approved by the Board The Board
recetves regular reports on the pohaes and controls 1n place

The Investment Manager mvests n compames that 1t considers to be well managed and subjeci 10 appropnate corporate
governance A well managed company 15 considered to be one which comples with all the relevani legislation and
which meets the social and environmental requirements of the ceuntry m which 1t operates 1t 1s important Lo recogmse
that local laws and requirements of emerging markels do not necessartly equate with those of developed countres

Institutional Shareholder Votmng Policy

As an msutunonal mvestor, the Company recognises its responsibility that the companies m which 1t invests should
aspire to appropriate levels of corporate governance As a matter of policy, the Company aims 1o utihse us votes in
shares held :n the refevant undertying portfolio companies at the annual general meetmgs of these comparies

Contact with Shareholders

The Chairman of the Company 1s available for any shareholder questions and he has regular meetings wath the
Company s major shareholders Furthermore, the members of the Board are avalable dunng the year for any
significant matters ansing and are usually present m person ai the Annual General Meeing At each Annual General
Meeung of the Company, Dr Mark Mobus, briefs shareholders on the invesiment outlook of the Company In
addiuon, on behall of the Board, he has penodic meetings with the Company’s major shareholders to discuss aspects
of the Company’s performance Shareholders may contact the members of the Board via Chem Dealer Services at
FTIML using the contact details provided on the inside back cover of thus report

Accountability and Audut

In 1994 the Board established an Audit Committee, which currently compnses Peter Harrison {Chairman of the Audn
Committee), Sir Peter Burt, Neil Collins and Hamish Buchan {appointed 26 June 2008) Petcr Godsoe was a member
of the Audit Commnitee unut hus resignation from the Board on 26 June 2008 The Audit Commutiee plays an
mponant role n the appraisal and supervision of key aspecis of the Company’s business including financial reporting
and mternal controls The Chasrman of the Audit Commuttee will auend the Company's Annual General Meeung and
will be prepared 1o respond to questions which may be raised by shareholders on matters within the Audut
Comrmillee’s responsibilities

The Company's Audit Committee meels representauves of the [nvestment Manager and 1ts Comphance Officer, who
report as 10 the proper conduct of business m accordance with the regulatory environment i which both the Company
and the Investment Manager operate The Company's external auditors also attend the Commutiee ai 1ts request at least
once a year, and report on their work procedures, the quahity of the Company’s accounting procedures and ther
fmdings m relation 10 the Company s statutory accounts The responsibihues of the Audit Commuttee nclude review of
the internal finanuial controls, accountng poliies, fmancial stalements, the management contract, the auditors
appomtment, remuneration independence and policy on supplymg non audit services and ensuring continued
independence

The terms of relerence of the Audu Commuttee reflect the recommendatiens of the Combined Code on Corporate
Governance 2006 A copy of the terms of reference of the Audit Commuitee 15 avatlable 10 shareholders on the TEMIT
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website (www temnt co uk) or on request via Chent Dealer Services at Frankhn Templeton Investment Management
Limited using ihe contact details provided on page 1

Non audu work underiaken by Grant Thornton UK LLP for the year ended 30 Apnl 2008 on behall of TEMIT
ncludes assistance with the capital restructunng proposals m 2007 and the tender offer proposals in 2008, review of
the October 2007 Half Yearly Report and review of the Intenm Accounts of the Company for the 11 month period
ended 31 March 2008 An engagement letter 1s 1ssued for all non audn work and subsequently reviewed by the Audit
Commuttee 1o ensure that the independence and objectvity of the Auduors 15 safeguarded

Rtsk Management Objectrves and Pohicy

The Company mvests in equities and other mvestments for the long term in seeking 1ts nvestment objectives as stated
on pages 21 and 22 This creates potential exposure to the following nsks Market Price, Foreign Currency, Interest
Rate, Liquichty and Fair Value nsks The Company's pohcy and objectives m relation to such nsks 15 disclosed n
Note 14 of the Notes to the Fianaal Statements

Internal Control
The Board 1s ulumately responsible for ensunng that a sound system of intermal controls of the Company 15
mamtamed to safeguard shareholders’ mnvestment and the Company’s assets

The Audit Commtiee undertakes an annual review of the effectiveness of the Company’s system of internal controls
and the Directors beheve that an appropriate framework 1s m place to meel the requirement of ensurnng that a sound
system of mternal controls 1s n place by the Company

The Board has an ongoing process for idenufying, evaluaung and managing nsks that the Company 1s exposed 10
This process 15 conducied throughout the year and has been conducted up to the date ol sigrung of this report The
Board has 1dentified nsk management conirols in the key areas of business objectives, accounting, comphance,
operations and secretanal as areas for the extended teview and, 1If relevant, necessary actions have been or are being
taken 1o remedy any significant fatings or weaknesses idenufied It has however, te be understood that systems of
internal control, hawever carefully designed, operated and supervised, can prowide only reasonable and not abselute
assurance aganst matenal misstatement or 1oss

The Company does not have us own mternal audit function but places rehance on the intemnal audit, comphance and
other control funcuons of 1ts service providers

Authonty to Purchase Own Shares

Al the Extraordinary General Meeung of the Company held on 13 June 2008, a Special Resolution was passed
authonsing the Company to purchase ns Ordmary Shares i the market a maximum ol 14 98 per cent of the
Ordinary Shares n 1ssue on 13 June 2008 or 70,854,915 shares, whichever 1s lower up to the conclusion of the
Annual General Meeung m 2009

Purchases will only be made for cash at a cost which 1s below the prevailing net asset value per share Under the rules
of the UK Listing Authonty the maximum price which may be paid 15 the higher of (a) 5% above the average market
value of the shares for the five business days before the purchase 15 made and {(b) that supulated by Article 5(1) of the
Buy back and Stabihsation Regulavon The mmmum pnce payable for the Ordmary Shares will be 25 pence per share

Purchases will be funded ether by using available cash resources by selling investments m the portfoho or by
borrowing The authornty o purchase shares will only be exercised 1f Lo do so would be the best mnterests of
shareholders generally Other than n accordance with a dispensation {rom the UK Listing Authonty, no shares will be
purchased by the Company dunng perods when the Company would be prohibiied from makimg such purchases by
the rules of the UK Listing Authonty

The Drueclars envisage seeking the renewal of the relevant authonty in 2009 and in each succeeding year
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Ordinary Busiess

It 1s proposed to receive and adopt the Directors’ and Audnors' Reports and Finanua} Statements for the year ended
30 Apnl 2008 and to approve the Direciors Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 Apnl 2008

It 15 proposed to declare a dividend and to authonse the Directors (o determine the Auditors remuneration

It 1s proposed 10 re elect Chnstopher D Brady, Harmmsh N Buchan, Sir Peier Burt, Peter O Harnson and
Gregory 1 Johnson as Directors

Grant Thornton UK LLP will be re appomted as Auditors

The results of the voles on the resolutions al the Annual General Meetng will be published on the Company s website
{www temut co uk)

Special Business

The Special Business to be dealt with at the forthcoming Annual General Meeung of the Company relates Lo the
cancellation of Share Premum Account and the Capital Redempuion Reserve and adoption of new Articles of
Association of the Company

Adoption of New Arucles of Association

it 15 proposed 1n resolution 11 10 adopt new articles of association (the New Artcles) in order to update the
Company’s current articles of association (the Current Articles) pnmanly to take account of changes in UK company
law brought about by the Companies Act 2006

The pnnaipal changes mtroduced i the New Arucles are summansed in the Appendix to the Notice of the Annual
General Meeung Other changes, which are of a rmmor, techmical or clanfymg naure and also some more munor
changes which merely refleci changes made by the Companies Act 2006 have not been noted n the Appendix o the
Notice of AGM The New Articles showing all the changes to the Current Arucles are avalable for inspection, as noted
on page 57 of this document

Capnal Reorgamsation

it 15 proposed m resolution 12 to cancel the amounts standing to the credu of the Company's share premum account
and caputal redempuion reserve The cancellanon wall create addional disinbutable reserves which wall provide
llexibility to the Company 1 conunuing to operate us share buy back pahicy

If resolution 12 15 approved 1L 1s expected that, subject 10 confirmanon of the Court of Session 1n Scotland (the
‘Court’) an application for the Court order confirming the cancellanon wll be made in October 2008 and the
cancellanon will take effect immediately upon the registration of such order with the Regisirar of Companies which 15
expected to be dunng December 2008

Recommendation

The Directors beheve all the Resolutions proposed are m the best mterests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole and recommend all shareholders 1o vote 1 favour of all the Resolutions

By Order of the Boeard

Regstered Office

3 Momson Street

Edmburgh EH3 8BH, UK

Sara A Maclntosh ;*_______ o __

for and on behalf of

Frankhn Templeton Investment Management Limited

Secretary
26 June 2008
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION REPORT

The Board has prepared this repert, m accordance with the requirements of Schedule 7A to the Compames Act 1985
An ordmary reselution for the approval of this report will be put 1o the members at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeung

The law requires your Company’s auditors to audit certan of the disclosures provided Where disclosures have been
auchted, they are indicated as such The auduors’ opiruion 15 mcluded n therr report on pages 36 and 37

Nommation and Remuneration Committee
The Board has appomnted a Nommauen and Remuneration Commuttee whose role 1s more fully explamed on page 27
m the Directors’ Report

Pohcy on Drrectors’ fees

The Board's pohcy 1s that the remuneraton of Non Execunive Directors should refiect the responsibiliies of the Board,
the expenence of the Board as a whale and be farr and comparable to that of other mvestment trusts strmlar i size
captal structure and mvestment objective This pohicy wali conninue for the year to 30 Apnl 2009 and subsequent
years

Non Executive Directors are not ¢hgible for bonuses, pension benefits share opuions, long term incentive schemes or
other benefits in accordance with other long standing mvestment trusts

Drrectors’ emoluments for the year (audited)
The Directors who served 1n the year recewved the following emotuments i the form of fees

2008 2007
Peter A Smuth (Chairman} £43 874 £40,000
Sir Peter Burt £30,000 £30,000
Peter . Godsoe OC (resigned 26 June 2008) £30,000 £30,000
Neil A Colhns £30,000 £17,500
Peter O Harmson {Appointed 30 November 2007) % £16,511 -
Chnstopher D Brady (Appowmtied 12 December 2007) £11,643 -
Sir Ronald Hampe! (Resigned 12 December 2007) £30,833 £50,000
Andrew 3 B Krught {Resigned 25 February 2008) £24.603 £30 000
Sam L Ginn (Resigned 28 September 2006) - £12 500
Gregory E Johnson (Appomied 12 December 2007)* - -
Charles B Johnson (Resigned 12 December 2007)t - -
Total £217,464 £210,000

*  Gregory Johnson 1s compensated m his capacity as President and Chiefl Executive Officer of Frankhn Resources,

Inc
t  Charles johnson was compensated m his capacity as Chairman of Frankhn Resources, Inc

#  Chairman of the Audit Commitiee
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Approval
The Direclors’ Remuneration Report on pages 34 and 35 was approved by the Board of Directors on 26 June 2008
and sigried on 1ts behalf by

By Qrder of the Board

Regstered Office
5 Mornson Street
Ednburgh EH3 8BH

UK S;_ /\/{ "
r
Sara A Maclntosh
for and on behalf of
Frankhin Templeton Investment Managemert Limited

Secretary
26 Junc 2008

TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS INVESTMENT TRUST PIC



REPORT OF THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR
TO THE MEMBERS OF TEMPLETON EMERGING MARKETS
INVESTMENT TRUST PLC

We have audited the hinancial statements of Templeton Emerging Markets [nvestment Trust PLC {or the year ended

30 Apnl 2008 which compnse the mcome staternent, the balance sheet, the statement of changes n equity, the cash
flow siaiement, the accounung polcies and notes 1 to 18 These financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting pehaes set out therein We have also audited the mformation n the Directors’ Remuneranon Repost that 1s
descnbed as having been audited

Thus report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a bady, n accordance with Section 235 of the Companies
Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we mught state to the Company s members those matlers we
are required to state to them 1n an audstor’s report and for no other purpose To the Fullest extern perrmtted by law,
we do nol accept or assume responsibiity to anyone other than the Company and the Company’s members as a body,
far our audyt work, for this report, or for the opimons we have formed

Respective responstbibieies of directors and audiiors

The directors’ responsibilities for prepanng the Annual Report, the Directors’ Remuneration Repornt and the financial
statements in accordance with United Kingdom law and International Financial Reperting Standards (IFRSs) as
adapted by the European Umon are set out n the Statement ol Durectors’ Responsibiliues

Our responsibility 15 (o audit the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Reporl Lo be audited
in accordance with retevant legal and regulatory requiremenis and Internancnal Standards on Audiung (UK and
Ireland)

We report to you our opinion as 1o whether the financial siatements give a true and fair view and whether the
financal statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited have been properly prepared n
accordance with the Compantes Ac 1985 We also repont 10 you whether i our opsmion the mflarmaton given m the
Directors' Report 15 consistent with the financial stalements The mlormation given n the Dhrectors Report includes
that specific mformauon presented 1 the Charman’s Statement and the Manager's Report that 15 cross referred from
the Performance section of the Directors’ Report

In addition we report to you if n our oprmon, the Company has not kept proper accountng records, 1f we have not
recerved all the mformation and explanations we require for our audst, or 1f information specified by law regarding
directors’ remuneratien and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We review whether the Corporate Governance Statemeni reflects the company’s comphance with the mine provisions
of the 2006 Combined Code speaified for our review by the Lisung Rules of the Financial Services Authonty, and we
report if i daes not We are not requnred 1o consider whether the board's stalements on mternal control cover atl nsks
and controls, or form an opmion on the effectiveness of the company's corporate governance procedures or Us nsk
and control procedures

We read other informatian contamed n the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 15 consistent with the hinancial
statements The other informauon compnses only the Company Summary, Financial Summary Ten Year Record,
Directors' Report, the unauduted part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report, the Chairman's Statement, Manager's
Report and Portfolo Review, Portfolio Summary, Portfoho Holdings, and Ten Largest Investments We consider the
wmphcations for our report I we become aware of any apparent misstalements or matenal nconsistencies with the
financial statements Our responsibiliies do not exiend 1o any other informauon

Basis of audtt optmon

We conducted our audit n accordance with Internanonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Audiing Practices Board An audit includes examination, on a lest basis, of evidence relevant 1o the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements and Lhe part of the Directors Remuneration Report 1o be audited 1t also
includes an assessment of the significant estimates and judgments made by the directors m the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are appropnate to the Company's cireumstances,
consistently apphed and adequately disclosed
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We planned and performed our audn so as to obtam all the mformauon and explanatons which we considered
necessary n order to provide us with sufficieni endence to give reasonable assurance that the finanaal stalements and
the part of the Directors’ Rerauneraton Report to be audued are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by
fraud or other wregulanty or error In forming our opimon we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information 1n the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneranon Report to be audred

Opinion
In our cpimon

» the finanua! statements give 4 true and far view, in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Uriton as
apphed in accordance with the prowisions of the Companies Act 1985, of the state of the company's alfairs as at
30 Apnl 2008 and us profut for the year then ended,

e the financial statements and the part of the Directors’ Remuneranon Report 1o be andied have been properly
prepared in accordance with the Compames Act 1985, and

» the mformation given i the Directors’ Report 1s consistent with the financial statements
Gra ol Bl U< (P
Grant Thornton UK LLP

Regstered Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London
26 June 2008
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INCOME STATEMENT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2008

2008 2007
Note  Revenue Capital Total  Revenue Capital Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Gains on tnvestments and exchange
Gamns on mvestments at {air value 6 - 607,057 607,057 - 52,513 52513
Losses on foreign exchange - {381) (581) - {739 (739
Revenue
Dividends 1 57,578 - 37,578 52,883 - 52,883
Bank lnterest 1 8§20 - 820 1,192 - 1,192
58,398 606,476 664874 54,075 51774 105849
Expenses
Investrnent management [ee 2 (22,602) - (22,602) (17,328} - (17,328}
Other expenses 3 (8 228) - (8,228) (5.715) - (5,715
Profit belore taxauon 27,568 606,476 634,044 31,032 51,774 82,806
Tax expense 4 (7,728) - (7.728)  (8,727) - (8,727
Profit for the financial year 19,840 606476 626,316 22,305 51,774 74,079
Profit atinbutable to equuty
holders of the Company 19840 606,476 626,316 22,305 51,774 74,079
Basic earnings per Ordinary
Share 5 407p 12443p 12850p 4 16p 9 aop 13 82p
Annualised Expense Rauo 13%% 132%

The Total «alumn 15 the Income Statement of the Company

Ihe supplementary revenue and capital return columns are both prepared under guidance pubhshed by the Assocation of
Investment Companies

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement

All items in the above statemem derive from continuing operations
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BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 30 APRIL 2008

Note 2008 2007
£'000 L1000
ASSETS
Non current assets
Investments 6 2,264 920 1,903,046
Current assets
Trade and other recervables 7 18,961 8,010
Cash 22,605 25515
41,566 34,925
LIABILITIES
Current habilines
Trade and other payables 8 {11,082) (78353
Current 1ax payahle (2,778 (2,248)
(13 860) (1o,101)
Non-current habihities
Deferred tax 9 (1,237) (2,386)
NET ASSETS 2,201 365 1,925 484
1SSUED SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
Equity Share Capual 10 118,170 133,995
Share Prermium Account 375,327 375 327
Capital Redempuion Reserve 22,718 6893
Capual Reserve — Realised 1,719,870 414 900
Capual Reserve — Unreahsed - 943 605
Revenue Reserve 55310 30 764
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS 2,291,395 1925484
Net Assel Value per Ordinary Share (in pence) 11 484 77 359 24

These Financial Statements were approgved [ov ssue by the Board and signed on 26 June 2008

1
Peter Smuth 'AL,
Chatrman

Peter Harnson H/
M Ata Sin_
«—
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2008

Captal Capital Capital
Share Share  Redumption  Rescrve Reserve Revenue

Capital Premium Reserve Realsed  Unreghsed Reserve Total
L0060 L000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
Balance at 30 April 2006 133995 375327 6893 271,724 1035007 43253 1866199
Profu for the penod 143 176 (91 402) 22 305 74 079
Equity didends {14 794} {14 794)
Balance at 30 Aprd 2007 133995 375327 6893 414,900 943 605 30,764 1925484

Transfer to capual reserves® 943605 (943 603
Profit for the pencd 606 476 19 840 626 316
Fquny dimidends (15294}  (15294)
Purchase and cancellaton of own shares (note 10) (15 825) 15825 (245111 (245 111)
Balance at 30 Apnl 2008 118,170 375327 22718 1719870 55310 21291,395

*With effect 1 May 2007 changes i fair value of investments which are reacdily convernible 10 cash without accepting adverse terms at the balance
sheet date are included in realised rather thar unreahsed capital reserves The balance on both capual reserves a1t | May 2007 has been imended

by a resenve transfer to reflect 1his change
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2008

As at As at
30 Apni 30 Apnl

2008 2007

£000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Profit before taxation 634,044 82,806
Adjustments for
Gams on wnvestmenis at fair value (607 037) (52519
Losses on foreign exchange 581 739
Increase in debrors (2,934} (439)
(Increase)decrease 1n accrued income 20 (36)
(Increase)/decrease in crechitors 3827 203
Cash generated from operations 28,481 30,334
Taxation paid (8,160) (8.878)
Net cash nflow [rom operaung acuvities 20,321 21,456
Cash flows from investing acuvities
Purchases of non current financial assets (146,864} (3716100
Net proceeds from the sale of non current finanaal assets 383616 364,806

236,732 (6.804)
Cash flows from financing acuvities
Equity dividends pad (15 294) (14,793)
Purchase of shares for cancellation (245 111) -
(260,403) (14,793)

Net decrease n cash and cash equivalents (3,332) (141)
Cash and cash equivalents at start of year 25915 25,764
Exchange gams on cash 22 292
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 22,605 25,915
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(@)

(b

Basis of preparation

The [manc:al statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Internanenal Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS"} and where appropnate, International Accounting Standards (*[AS™), which compnise standards
and mterpretanons approved by the [nternational Accounting Standards Board (*lASB ), and Intemational
Accounung Standards and Standing Interpretations Committee (“IASC”) that remain n effect, and 1o the extent
that they have been adopted by the Eurcpean Union

Al the date of authonsation of these financial statements, the {cllowing standards and mterprelations have not
been applied m these financial statements since they were 1n 1ssue but not yet effective

Effective date for
accounting periods

International Accounting Standards (IAS/1IFRS) beginning on or afier
1AS 1 (revised} Presentation of Financial Statements Comprehensive revision

wicluding, requunng a statement of comprehensive wcome 1 January 2009

IFRS B Cperating Segments 1 January 2009

IAS 23 Borrowing Costs (revised March 2007} 1 January 2009
International Financial Reporting Interpretatons Committee (1FRIC)

IFRIC 12 Service Concession Arrangements 1 January 2008

IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes 1 July 2008

IFRIC 14 1AS 19 ~ The Lamuit on a Defined Beneft Asset, rummum funding
requiremnents and thew wierachion 1 January 2008

The Directors have chosen not to early adopt these standards and interpretations as they do not anticipate that
they would have a matenal impact on the Company’s financial statements in the period of imnal appheanon

The hnancial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the measurement at fair value
of certain financial instruments The principal accounnng policies adopted are set out below Where presentanonai
guidance set out in the Statement of Recommended Practice {(“SORP’) for investment trusts 1ssued by the
Association of Investment Trusts ("AIC™) i January 2003, revised December 2005, 15 consistent with the
tequirements of IFRS, the Directors have sought to prepare the Iinanoal statements on a bagis comphiant with the
recommendattons of the SORP

All financial assets and financial habihuies are recogmsed {or de recogmised) on the date of the transaction by the
use of “trade date accounung”

As the Company 15 a UK investment trust, whose share capital 15 1ssued m the UK and denomtinated in Pounds
Sterhng, the Directors consider that the funcuonal currency of the Company 1s Pounds Sterhng

Presentation of income statement

In order 10 reflect better the actvities of an mvesiment trust company and mn accordance with gudance 1ssued by
the AIC, supplementary information which analyses the income stalement between 1tems of a revenue and capual
nature has been presented within the mcome statement In accordance with the Company’s status as an
vestment trust, net capital profits may not be disinbuted by way of dividend Addionally the net revenue 1s
the measure the Directors beheve appropnate m assessing the Company s comphance with certain requirements set
out n Section 842 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988
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(c)

{d)

Revenue

Drvidends recervable on equity shares are treated as revenue for the year on an ex dividend basis Where no
ex dividend date 15 available diidends are recogmsed on their due date Provision 1s made for any dividends not
expected 10 be received

Where the Company has elected to receive its dadends mn the form of additional shares rather than n cash, the
amount of the cash diidend 1s recogrised 1n the income section of the Income Statement Any excess in the value
of the shares received over the amount of the cash diadend 15 recogmsed 1 the capital secuion of the Income
Statement

Interest recewvable on bank deposits 15 recogmsed on an accruals basis

Expenses

Transaction costs ansing on the purchase of investments are mncluded 1 the capital section of the

Income Staiement They are also included n the transfer 10 “Capnal Reserve — Reahsed”, i the Statement of
Changes n Equity

All other operatmg expenses are accounted for on an accruals basis and are charged through the revenue section
of the Income Statement except as [ollows

(1} expenses relaung to the disposal of an investment are deducied from the sales proceeds Details of transaction
costs on purchases and sales of wnvestments are disclosed 1n note 6 on page 48

{(n) expenses are treated as capial where a connection with the maintenance or enhancement of the value of the
mvestments can be demonstrated

Taxation
The 1ax expense represents the sum of the 1ax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable 1s based on taxable profut for the period Taxable profi differs from profit before tax as
reporied n the Income Statement because 1t excludes 1ems of ncome or expense that are taxable or deducuble n
other years and 1t further excludes 1ems that are never laxable or deductible The Company’s habily for currem
tax 15 calculated using tax rates that have been enacied or substanuvely enacted by the Balance Sheet date

In hine wath the recommendauons of the SORP, the allocanon method used 1o calculate 1ax relief on expenses
presented against capial returns n the supplementary miormation 1t the Income Statement 1s the “marginal
basis’ Under this basis 1f taxable income 15 capable of being offset entirely by expenses presented in the revenue
return column of the Income Statement, then no tax relief 1s transferred o the capital return column

Deferred taxation 15 recognised in respect of all taxable temporary differences that have ongmated but not reversed
at the halance sheet date, where Lransactions or events that result in an obhgation to pay more tax in the future or
night to pay less tax m the future have occurred at the Balance Sheet date This 15 subject to deferred tax assets
only being recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that 1axable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary difference can be utihsed Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the rates
appheable 1o the legal junsdictions m which they anse

Due to the Company s status as an nvestment trust company, and the mlention to continue meetmg the
condiions required to obtain approval n the foreseeable future, the Company has not provided deferred tax on
any caputal gains and losses ansing on the revaluation or disposal of mvestments

The carrying amount of deferred 1ax assets 1s reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
15 no longer probable that suflicient taxable profits will be available 1o allow all or part of the asset 1o be
recovered
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES
CONTINUED

() Investments held at farr value through profit or loss

The Company s business is mnvesung n financial asseis with a view 1o profiung from their total return m the form
ol ncome and capual growth This portfolie of financral assets 1» managed and us performance evaluated on a far
value basts i accordance with a documented investment strategy and mformanon about the portfolio s provided
internally on that basis to the Company s Direciors and other key management personnel Accordingly, upon
mial recogmuion all of the Company’s non current asset nvestments are designated on minal recogmuon as being
“al fair value through profit or loss” They are included iniually a1 farr value, which 1s taken to be their cost
mcluding expenses neaidental to the acquisiiion

Subsequently, the investments ave valued at “fair value™ which 1s measured as follows

{1} The far value of financial mstruments 15 based on therr quoted d price at US market close on the balance
sheet daie, without deduction for any of the esumated future selhng costs

(1) Unquoted mvestments where there 1s not an active market are valued using an appropnate valuaion
techmique so as to establish what the transaction price would have been at the balance sheet date

Gams and losses ansmng from changes in fair value are included in the net profit or loss for the pered as a capual
stem m the Income Statement

(g) Foreign currencies
Transacuions mvolving foreign currencies are translated te Sterling (the Company’s functional currency) at the spot
exchange rale ruling on the date of the transaction Assets and hahtes 1n foreign currencies are translated at the
rate of exchange ai the balance sheet date Foreign currency gams and losses are included i the Income Statement
and allocated as capnal or income depending on the nature of the transacuion giving nse to the gan or loss
Foreign currency gans and losses allocated as capual are included in the transfer 10 ‘Caputal reserve — reahsed’ n
the Statement of Changes m Equity

(h) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash compnses cash in hand and demand deposits Cash equivalents are short term, highly iquid investments
that are reachly convertble to knewn amounts of cash that are subject to an msigmficant nsk of changes in value

(1} Reserves
Share Premium Account — represents the amount paid on the Share Capilal i excess of the shares’ nominal value

Capual Redemption Reserve — represents the nonunal value of shares repurchased

Capital reserves — the Company’s Articles of Association preclude u from making any disinbution of capital
profits

Capita] Reserve Reahsed - gamns and losses on realisation of investrmerus, changes in fair value of mvestments
which are readily converuble 1o cash, without accepting adverse terms, and reahsed exchange differences of a
capual nature are dealt with in this reserve Purchases of the Companys own shares for cancellation are also
funded from this reserve

Capual Reserve Unreahsed — changes in the fair value of mvestments that are not readily converuble to cash,
without accepung adverse terms, and the amounts by which other asseis and habihues valued at fair value dhifer
from Lheir book value are dealt wath 1n this reserve

Revenue Reserve — represents net income earned that has not been distnbuted to shareholders

Income recogmised 1n the Income Statement 15 allocated to appheable reserves i the Statement of Changes n
Equiy
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 APRIL 2008

1 Income 2008 2007
£000 L£000

Income from investments

UK divnidends 482 176

Other EU dnadends 2,817 2,649

Other overseas dividends 54,279 49,614

Scnp dividends - 444
57,578 52,883

Other income

Depasit interest 8§20 1192

Total imcome 58,398 534,075

Total income compnses

Dradends 57,578 52,883

Interest 820 1,182
58,398 54,075

Income from mvestments

Listed overseas 57,096 52,707

2 Investment management fee 2008 2007

£000 £'000
Variable Expense
Investmeni management fee 22,602 17.328

The Company s Investment Manager 1s Templeton Asset Management Lid { TAML")

The contract between the Company and TAML may be terminated al any date by enher party giving one years notice
of termmnation TAML recewves a fee paid monthly in arrears, at an annual rate of 1 00% of the monthly total net assets

of the Company As al 30 Apnl 2008, £3 5 mithon (30 Apnil 2007 £3 2 mullion} in lees were payable and

outstanding 1o TAML In addinon to the mvestment management fee above the Company obtamns secretanal and
admnistration services from FTIML pursuant o a secretanal and admirastration agreement {which 1s termmable by

either paity giving one year's notice 10 the other) The fee in respect of secretanal and admimistranon services 1s
recorded within other expenses {note 3)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

3  Other expenses 2008 2008 2007 2007
L£000 £000 £'000 £000
Variable expenses
Secretanal and admumsiranon expenses 4520 3,466
Custody fees 1,688 1,215
6,208 4,681

Fixed expenses
Directors’ emoluments 254 223
Auditors’ remuneration
Fees payable to the Company s auditor for the
audnt of the annual financial statements 28 28
Fees payable 10 the Company’s auditor and us
associates {or other services
— Orther services pursuant o legislation

half yearly iimancial repon 4 4
— Other services relating to taxation - 3
— Services relaung Lo corporate finance transactions
assistance with the caputal restructunng proposals 31 -
Registrar fees 169 219
Bank overdraft interest 198 7
Other admmnistration expenses 1336 550
2,020 1,034
Total other expenses 8,228 5,715

Included within the other admimstration expenses are the costs associated with the reorganisation proposals brought
by the Company m July 2007

Fees m tespect of services as Directors are paid by the Company enly 1o those Directors whe are independent of
Frankhn Templeton Investments

As at 30 Apnl 2008, £702,000 (30 Apnil 2007 £635,000) m fees were payable and outstanding to FTIML

Following the outcome m a recent European Court of Justice Case, HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) has now
accepled thal management fees charged to Investment Trusts can be treated as exempt for Value Added Tax (VAT)
purposes The Company has also lodged protecuive claims with HMRC 10 recover VAT previously overpaid by 1
However 1 15 generally acknowledged that the resolunion of retrospective claims 1s hikely to be complex and may not
occur for some ume HMRC has recently ssued some guidance i prinaple on how it views such claims should be
settled but also reaffirms that claims will be considered on 4 <ase by case basis As such the eventful outcome of the
claims cannat be accurately predicted at this ume No credit has been taken mto these accounts for any amounts that
may be recoverable
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4  Tax on ordinary activities 2008 2007

L£'000 £000

Corporation tax charged at 30% 7,650 7,540
Deuble taxation relief (3,791} (2,984}
Pror year adjustrents - 4
3859 4560

Overseas tax 5,073 3427
Adjustment m respect of prior penods (55} 54
Curremt tax 8877 8041
Deferred tax — current year (1,149} 78%
— prior year - (1%

7,728 8,727

Taxation

The current taxauon change for the year 1s different from the standard rate of corporation tax 1 the UK With effect
from 1 Apnl 2008 the standard rate of corporation tax m the UK became 28% Pnor to 1 Apnl 2008 the rate was
30% (2007 30%) The differences are explaned below

2008 2007

£1000 £'000
Profit on ordmary activines before taxation 27,568 31,032
Theoreucal tax at UK corporation tax rate 8225 9,310
Effects of
— Prior year adjustments to Corporanon Tax - 4
— Prior year adjustments 10 1rrecoverable overseas tax (53) 54
— Non taxable mcome (12) -
— Stock dindends - {133)
— Non Deductble expenses 170 -
— UK dividends not subject to Corporation Tax (144) (53
~ Other FU dividends not subject o Corporation Tax (840) {(795)
— Irrecoverable overseas tax 528 443
— Income taxable in different periods (144 -
— Pnor year deferred tax adjustment - {103}
Actual tax charge 7,728 8,727

The Company 15 exemnpt from UK corporation tax on capual gans because 1t 1s an Investment Trust and has exchuded
the capnal retum of £606 476 000 (2007 £51,774,000) from ts reconuhanion

Due to recent favourable devisions n the European Court of Justice the taxanon of overseas dividends 1n the UK has
been subject 10 review In response to decisions from the courts, the Government has 1ssued a consultanon paper on
the future taxation of overseas dividends In hght of this uncertanty, the Company has not recogmsed the potential
refund of UK corporation tax from treaung this income as non taxable
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

5  Earmings per Qrdinary Share
Earrungs per Ordinary Share has been calculated on the followmg earmings

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007

Revenue Capital Total Revenue Capital Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Basic 16,640 606,476 626,316 22,305 51,774 74,079

Earnings per Ordmary Share

2008 2008 2008 2007 2007 2007
Revenue Caputal Total Revenue Capital Total
p p p p p p

Basic 407 124 43 128 50 416 966 13 82

The earnings per Ordinary Shares 1s based on the profit on ordinary actvatics after tax and on the weighted average
number of Ordinary Shares 1 1ssue dunng the year 487,398 572 (2007 535 981,593)

At the EGM on 13 Junc 2008 shareholders approved the proposals for a lender offer to purchase up 1o 30% of the
wssued share capial Since this event took place afler the year end there 15 no impact on the numbers presented here

6 Financial Assets — Investments 2008 2007
£000 L£'000
Opening mvestments as at 1 May 1,903 045 1,851,594
Movements 1 year
Addions 149 761 364,226
Sales (394,751) {363,145)
Realised profus 192 071 143,922
Net {depreciation)appreciation 414 800 (91 5513
Closmg mvestments 2,264,926 1,903,046

Ali investments have been recogmsed at fair value through the Income Statement

Transaction costs for the year on purchases were £594,000 (2007 £925,000) and transaction costs for the year on
sales were £877,000 (2007 £744,000) The aggregate transaction costs for the year were £1,471,000 (2007
£1,669,000)

2008 2007
£000 £000
Realised and unrealised gains on investments compnise of
Realised gamn based on carrying value at 3¢ Apnl 2007 192,071 143,922
Net movement in unreahsed {depreciaticn)/appreciation 414,800 {91,551}
indian Capual Gains Tax 186 142
Reahised and unreahised gains on mvestments 607,057 52,513
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7 Trade and other recewvables 2008 2007
£000 £060
Sale of investments for luture setilement 11,347 817
Dmadends receivable 7110 7.95%
Other debtors 357 142
Accrued mcome 78 98
Overseas (ax recoverable 69 -
18,961 9,010
8  Trade and other payables 2008 2007
£000 £'000
Purchase of Investments for Future Seutlement 6,207 3311
Accrued expenses 4,875 4,540
Net losses on Forward Foreign Exchange Contracts - 2
11,082 7.853
9 Deferred 1ax 2008 2007
£000 L'000
Deferred tax provided
Accrued ncome taxable on receipt 1,237 2,386
£'000 L£000
The movement 1n the provision 15 as follows
Provisicn at start of year 2386 1,700
Prior year adjustment - (103}
Defurred tax n fncome Statement (1,149 789
1,237 2,386

Deferred tax has been provided at 28% (2007 30%) because of uncertainty as 1o the average rate of tax that wll
apply when the undertying urung differences will reverse

Any changes m the provision for deferred tax have been recognised in the Income Statement under Tax Expense (see

Note 4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

10 Called up share capial Allotted, 1ssued &
Authorised fully pard
£000 Number £000 Number
Ordinary Shares of 25p each
Balance as at 1 May 2007 340,605 1,362,419,566 133,565 535,581,593
Shares repurchased dunng the year - - (15,825)  (63,300,377)
Balance as at 30 April 2008 340,605 1,362,419,566 118,170 472,681,216

The Company s Ordinary Shares have unrestricted voung nghts at all general meetings, are entitled to all of the profiis
available lor disinbution by way of dwidend, and are enutled 10 repayments of all of the Companys capnal on
winding up

During the year, 63 300,377 shares were bought back for cancellation at a cost of £245 1 mullon No shares were
bought back and cancelled beiween 1 May 2008 and 18 June 2008 The amount of the propuosed dividend for the
year ended 30 April 2008 takes account of the reduced amoumt of shares i 1ssue after the tender offer in June 2008

11 Net asset value per share
The net asset value per share and the net asset value atinbutable to the Ordinary Shares at the year end were as

lollows
Net asset value Net asset value
per share attributable
2008 2007 2008 2007
p p £000 £1000
Ordinary Shares 484 77 359 24 2,291 395 1,925,484
12 Dividend 2008 2007
Rate (p) £000 Rate () £000
Declared and paid m the year
Equity dividend on Ordinary Shares
Final dividend for year ended 30 Apnl
2007 (2006 2 76p) 313 15,294 276 14,793
15 294 14,793
Proposed for approval at the Company's AGM
Equuty dwidend on Ordinary Shares
Final dividend for year ended 30 Apnl 2008
(2007 3 13p) 350 12,408
12,408

Dividends are recognised when the shareholders mghts to receve payment 15 established [n the case of the final
dividend, this means that they are not recogmised unul approval 1s received by shareholders at the Annual General
Meeting The amount of the proposed diidend for the year ended 30 Aprl 2008 takes account af the reduced
amcunt of shares 1n 1ssue alier the tender offer m June 2008
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13 Related party transactions
The following are considered 10 he retated parties

Templeton Asset Management bid (*TAML™)
Franklm Templeton Investment Management Limited (FTIML™)

All matenal related party transactions, as set out i International Accounting Standard 24 Related Pary Disclosures,
have been disclosed in Note 2 and Note 3

14 Risk management

In purswing the mvestment objectives set out on the pages 21 and 22 of this Repont the Company helds a number of
financial instruments which are exposed to a vanety of nsks that could result in exther a reduction 1n the Company s
net assets or a reduction of the profits available for dividends

The man nsks ansing from the Company's [imancial mstruments are market nsk, foreign currency nsk, nterest rate
nsk other price nsk hqudity nsk and credi nsk

The objectives, policies and processes for managing these nsks, and the methods used 1o measure the nsk, are set out
below These pohcies have remamed unchanged since the beginmng of the year to which these lnancial staterments
relate

Market price nisk
Market nsk anses mamly from uncertainties about future prices of financial mstruments held It represents the
potenual loss the Company might suffer through holding market positions in the face of price movements

The Directors meet quarterly to consider the asset allocation of the portfolio 1n order 10 munimmse the nsk associated
with particular countries or industry sectors whilst conunuing to lollow the investment objectives The Invesiment
Manager has responsimlity for montonng the existing pertfolo selected in accordance with the overall asset allocation
parameters <escnibed above and seeks 10 ensure that mdhvidual stocks also meet the nsk/reward profile on an ongeing
basis

The [nvestment Manager does not use denvative mstruments to hedge the mvestment portfohio against market nsk, as
m ats opimian, the cost of suth a process would result in an unacceptable reduction n the potennal for capial growth
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CONTINUED

14 Risk management (contimued)
Foreign currency nisk

Currency ranslanon movements can sigmficantly aftect the income and capital value of the Company’s mvestments as
the majonty of the Company’s assets and mcome are denorminated 1n currencies other than steriing, which s the
Company’s funcnional currency

The Investment Manager has denufied three principal areas where foreign currency nisk could affect the Company
- movements m rates affect the value of nvesiments

- movements 1n rates affect short term wmung differences, and

- movements n rates affect the income receved

The Company does not hedge the sterling value of investments that are pnced n other currencies

The Company may be subject to short lerm exposure to exchange rate movemenis, for instance where there 15 a
diiference between the date ani investment purchase or sale 1s entered nto and the date on which 1t 15 settled

The Company recerves mcome 1 currencies other than sterhng and the sterhng values of this income can be affected
by movements 1 exchange rates The Company converts all receipts of income inte sterling on or near the date of
recelpt, 1t, however, does not hedge or atherwise seek 10 avord rate movement nsk on mcome accrued but not
received

The fair value of the Company's monetary items that have foreign currency exposure at 30 Apnl 2008 are shown
below

2008 Trade and Trade and Total net Investments at
other Cash other foreygn currency  faur value through

recervables ai bank payables exposure profit or loss

Currency £'000 £000 £000 £000 £'000
Uss 5,455 4,758 - 10,213 841,085
Hong Kong $ 308 - - 308 333831
Indonesia rupee - - (5,235) {5,235) 134,963
Korean won - - - - 236,801
That bhat 1896 - - 1,896 204,639
Turkish hra 103 - - 103 178,931
Other 15,020 2,938 (971} 16,987 334,676
2007 Trade and Trade and Total net Investments at
other Cash other foreign currency  fair value through

recevables at bank payables exposure profit or loss

Currency £000 £000 L£000 £'000 £000
Uss 3773 - - 3773 555,800
Hong Kong $ 1,882 - - 1 882 284,032
Indonesia rupee - — {(119) (119 66,171
Korean won - - - - 239037
Tha: bhat 2,604 - - 2,604 144,008
Turksh hira - - (3,192) (3,192) 161 5693
Other 3,839 44 - 3,983 452,315
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14 Risk management (continued}

Sensitivity
The following 1able illustrates the sensivity of the profu after taxaucen for the year and the equity with regard to the
Company's menetary financial assets and habihines

Il the pound had strengthened by 10% relauve Lo all currencies on the reporting date, wath all other vanables held
constant, the impact would have been

2008 2007
Revenue Captal Revenue Capital
£000 £000 L£000 £000
US$ 1 28 - 28
Hong Kong % - i3 - 13
[ndeonesia rupee (1 9 - 6
Thai bhat - 8 - 8
Turkish hira - 9 - 8
Other 2 22 - 32
2 91 - 96

A 10% weakening of the pound against the above currencies would have resulted n an equal and opposite effect on
the above amounts

Interest rate nsk

The Company 15 perrmtted to invest in fixed rate secuniies Any change to the mterest rates relevant to particular
securiies ray result m either income ncreasing or decreasing, or the Investrnent Manager bemg unable te secure
simular returns on the expiry of contracts or the sale of secunues In addwen, changes to prevaithng rates or changes in
expectations of future rates may result 1n an increase or decrease n the value of the securiies held

In general, 1f mnterest rates nse the ncome potential of the Company also nses, but the value of fixed rate secunues
will declhine A dechne 1n interest rates will have the opposite effect

Interest rate nisk profile
The majonty of the Company's financial assets are nen interest bearmg equity mvestments

The carrying amount, by the earher of contractual re pnang or maturnty date of the Company’s financial mstruments
was as follows

Within Within
one year one vear
2008 2007
L6000 £000

Cash flow mterest rate nsk

Loans and recervables

Cash 22,605 25915
Maximum m year 109,360 60,236
Mimimum m year 28 3632

Exposures vary threughout the year as a consequence of changes in the make up of the net asseis of the Company
ansing [rom out of the invesiment and nsk management process

Cash balances are held on call deposit and earn nterest at the bank s daily rate

There were no exposure to fixed nterest mvestment secuntties dunng the year or at the year end
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4 Risk management {continued)

Ligumdity nisk

The Company s assets compnse manly of secunuies hsted on the stock exchanges of emerging economies  Liquidnty
can vary from market 10 marketl and some secunuies may take longer to sell As a closed ended mnvestment (rust,
hquidity nsks attnbutable 1w the Company are less sigmfcant than for an open ended fund

The nsk of the Company not having sufficient quidity at any time 1s not considered by the Beard o be sigmificant,
given the large number of quoted investments held in the porifoho and the hquid nature of the portfolio of
mveslments

The portfolio manager reviews hquidity at the time of makmng each 1investment decision and moniors the evohving
lqudity prolile of the porifolio regularly

Secunities held by the Company are valued at Bid price Other financial assets and habthues of the Company are
mcluded in the balance sheet at fair value

Credit nisk

Certain transactions in securities thal the Company enters mto expose 1t 1o the risk that the counter party will not
deliver the investment (purchase) or cash (in relation te sale or declared dividend) afier the Company has fulfilled sts
responstbilines The Company only buys and sells through brokers which have been approved by the nvestmens
Manager as an acceptable counter party In addinon, hrmits are set as to the maximum exposure to any mdmwdual
breker that may exist at any time These hmus and the credit standing of all counterparties are reviewed regularly

The amount of credit nsk that the Company 1s exposed 10 15 disclosed under Interest Rate Risk Profile

The Company has an ongoing contract with 1ts custedian for the provision of custody services Details of secunties
held m cusiedy on behalf of the Company are receved and reconciled monthly

To the extent that JPMorgan Chase Bank (JPMorgan} carnies out management and admimstranive dunies on the
Company’s behalf, the Company 1s exposed to counterparty nsk The Board access this nsk conunuously through
regular meetings with management of JPMorgan and with the JPMorgan internal audit funcuon, which function carres
out annual audits of JPMorgan appointed sub managers

Caputal management

The Company's capiial compnses shareholders’ funds which 1s managed on a basis consistent with 1ts mvestment
objecuve and pohcies, as disclosed 10 the Directors’ Report on pages 21 and 22 The prinapal nsks and their
management are disclosed above

Fair value
Fair values are denved as follows

—  Where assets are denominated 1n a foreign currency, they are converted inte the Sterhng amount using year end
rates ol exchange

— Non current financial assets — on the basis set out in the accounting pehaes

—  Cash — at the face value of the account
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15 Sigmficant holdings n investee undertakings
As at 30 Apnl 2008 the Company held 3% or more m the 1ssued share capnal of the following companies

% of 1ssued % of 1ssued

share captal share capital

Name 2008 2007
Bnihance China Automotive Heldings Lid 5 68 133
Hyundat Development Co 402 492
Tamnan Enterpnses Co Ltd 4091 436
Faysal Bank Ltd 465 399
Kainakim Bank Pubhe Ce 1ad, fgn 419 409

16 Contingent habihiues
No contingent habthuies existed as at 3¢ Apnl 2008 or 30 Apn! 2007

17 Financtal commitments
There were no financial commuments at 30 Apnil 2008 or 30 April 2007

18 Post balance sheet events
The Company has proposed a dividend of 3 30 pence per Ordimary Share Detals of this are disclosed m note 12

Al the EGM on 13 June 2008 shareholders approved proposals for a tender offer 1o purchase up 10 30% of the 1ssued
share capnal of the Company Accordingly, the proposals set out in the aircular to shareholders dated 20 May 2008,
are currently being implemented
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NOTICE OF MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Templeton Emerging
Markets Investment Trust PLC will be held at Stationer’s Hall, Ave Maria Lane, London
EC4M 7DD on 25 September 2008 at 12 noon to transact the following business

To consider and, 1f thought fit, 10 pass the following resclutions

Ordinary Bustness
Resolution No

1 To recewe and adopt the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports and Financial Statements for the year ended 30 Apnl

2008

To declare a divnidend

To re elect Chnstopher D Brady as a Director
To re elect Hamish N Buchan as a Director
To re elect Sir Peter Burt as a Director

To re elect Peter O Harnson as a Director

To re-elect Gregory E Johnson as a Director

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report for the year ended 30 Apnl 2008

O o~ Dy B

To re appomt Grant Thornton UK LLP as Auditors

—
<

To authonse the Directors 1o determine the Auditors’ remuneration

Special Bustness

11 That new Articles of Assouiation of the Company be adopted in the form produced 1o the Annual General
Meeting and minalled by the Chairman for the purposes of 1dent:fication

12 That, subject to confirmation of the Count of Session in Scotland, the share prermum account of the Company

and the capual redempuion reserve of the Company as at 500 pm on 25 September 2008 be cancelled

By Order of the Board

Registered Office
5 Mornson Street

Edinburgh EH3 8B [‘
; S— ———
Sara A Maclntosh \1 *
for and on behalf of
Franklin Templeton Investment Management Limued

Secretary

26 june 2008

Please ensure that you read the notes to this Notice on pages 57 and 58
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Notes

A member of the Cornpany entitled to atend and vote at the Meeung may appoint a proxy or proxies to attend and on 2
poll vote thereat mstead of im A proxy need not be a member of the Company

A proxy form 1s enclosed

A proxy form must be returned 1o the Company s registrar Fquimt Aspect House Lancing West Sussex BN99 6ZN 1o
arme not later than 12 noon on 23 September 2008

The Report and Financtal Statemenis are airculated to Shareholders Shareholders are cnnitled to attend and vote al the
Meeting

Coptes of the Jeuers of appomtment of the Directors, the current Arucles of Asscciation of the Company and the full terms of
the propesed amendments 1o the Articles of Association are available for inspection at the Company s registered office at

5 Marnson Street, Edinburgh, EH3 8BH at Frankhin Templeton Investment Management Lumted The Adelphi 1-11 John
Adam Street London WC2N 6HT and at the Annual General Meeung (for 15 munutes pnor to the meeung and dunng the
meenng)

Electronic proxy appowmntment for CREST members (for UK only)

CRFST members who wish 1o appoint a proxy or prexies through the CREST electromic proxy appomtment service may do
so for the Annual General Meetng 1o be held on 25 September 2008 and any adjournment(s) therecf by using the
procedures described n the CREST Manual CREST Personal Members or other CREST sponsored members and those
CREST members who have appointed a voung service provider(s), should refer to thewr CREST sponsor or voung service
provider(s} who wll be able Lo take the appropnate acuon on their behalf

In order for a proxy appomniment or instruction made using the CREST service 1o be valid the appropnate CREST message (a
‘CREST Proxy Instruction™} must be properly authenticated i accordance winh CRESTCo's speaificanions and must contain
the nformaiion required for such instructions, as descnbed m the CREST Manual The message regardless of whether u
comstitutes the appomtment of a proxy or to an amendment to the mstruction given to a previously appoinied proxy must, m
order 1o be valid be transmitted so as to be recewved by the 1ssuers agent (ID7RAD1) by the latest ume(s) for recewpt of proxy
appowntmenis specified m the notice of meetng For this purpose the ume of receipt will be 1aken to be the time (as
determined by the tmestamp apphed Lo the message by the CRFST Apphcanons 1ost) from which the issuer s agent 1s able
to retneve the message by enquiry 1o CREST in the manner presenbed by CRFST After this nme any change of instractions
to proxies appainted through CREST should be communicated 10 the appointee through other means

CREST members and where applicable their CREST sponsars or voting service providers should note that CRESTCo does
not make avallable special procedures in CRTST for any parucular messages Normal system timimngs and hminatons will
therefore apply in relation to the mput of CREST Proxy Instructions 1115 the responsibility of the CRFST member concerned
to take (or 1f the CREST member 1s a CREST personal member or sponsored member or has appointed a voung service
provider(s) 1o procure that lus CREST sponsor or voung service previder(s) 1ake(s}) such action as shail be necessary o
ensure that 2 message 15 transmiutted by means of the CREST system by any particular tme In: this connection CREST
mernbers and, where applicable, their CREST sponsors or voung service providers are relerred, m parucuiar o those sections
of the CREST Manual concerming practical hmutations of the CREST system and tmings

The Company may treat as invahd a CREST Proxy Instruction m the circumstances set out in Regulatien 35(5)a) of the
Unceruficated Secunties Regulauons 2001

Clectronic proxy appointment for non CREST members (for UK only)

Shareholders who prefer to register the appontment of their proxy electroncally via the Intemet can de so through the
Lloyds TSB Regstrars website at www sharevote co uk where full instructiens on the procedure are gnen The personal
reference number, card [D and account number printed in the voung pack will be required 1o use this electromic proxy
appomntment system

Altlernatively shareholders who have already registered with Tloyds TSB Registrars on: line portfoho service Shareview can
appot thewr proxy electromically by logging on 1o their portfoho at www shareview co uk and chcking on ‘Company
Meetings' A proxy appointment made electromically wall not be vahd of sent 1o any address other than those provided or f
recewved after 12 noon on 23 September 2008 Please note that any electrome communcanon found to contan a computer
virus will not be accepted
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NOTICE OF MEETING
(CONTINUED)

8 Electrome proxy appomtment for New Zealand registered shareholders
New Zealand registered invesiors who prefer to register the appmmiment of their proxy electromeally via the Internet can do
so through the Computershare website ai www computershare co nzfinvestor centre chck on Proxy voung choose the
company where full instructians on the procedure are given Your CSN (Common Shareholder Number) and personal FIN
Nurmber walt be required 10 use this electrome proxy appointment sysiem A proxy appointment made eleciromcally will not
be valid 1f sent 1o any address ather than that provided or 1If recewved after 12 noon (UK time} on 23 September 2008 Please
note that any electrome communication found and contam a computer virus will not be accepred New Zealand registered
investors cannat appomnt more than one proxy when registenng the appomtment of their proxy electzomcally
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APPENDIXTO NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING

Adopuon of new Arucles of Assoctation

The proposed new Arucles of Assccianion {the New Arucles) have been prepared to iake account of developments
the law and practice applicable (o the Company The following summary mighlights the key changes from the current
Arucles of Associanon (the Current Articles)

Articles which duplicate statutory provisions

Provisions m the Current Articles which rephcate provisions contaned wn the Companies Act 2006 are 1n the main
amended 1o bring them mto ine with the Companies Act 2006 Certamn examples of such prowisions include
provisions as to the form of resolunons, the vanation of class nghts, the requirement o keep accounting records and
provisions regarding the period of notice to convene general meetings The mamn changes to reflect this approach are
detatled below Where a particular article 15 referred Lo below, this 1s the pnncipal arncle where the changes will be
effected however consequennal changes will be made, where appropriate throughout the New Arncles 1o ensure
consistency with these changes

Extraordmary Resolutions and Meetings

Any reference 1o extraordinary resclunions and extraordimary meetings will be deleted as the concept of extraordmary
resolutions and extraordinary meetings have not been retained under the Comparues Act 2006 The prowvisions have
been amended mn the New Articles 10 reflect that a special resolution (not an extraordinary resolution} will be required
o vary any class nghts

Quorum Requirements (Article 53}
The Compames Act 2006 provides 1n general lerms that the quorum for a general meetng be calculated by reference

to the numbers of “qualifying persons’ who are present at the meeting which mcludes an individual who 15 a member

of the Company, a person authonsed 10 act as the representative of a corporation and a person appomnied as proxy of
a member As belore, w15 proposed that the quorum for a general meeting will be two but, in ine with the
Compantes Act 2006, the New Articles make clear that there will be no double counting for qualifying persons who
are representatives of the same corporation of proxies of the same member
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APPENDIX TO NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL

MEETING
(CONTINUED]

Corporate Representanves (Article 74)
Muluple corporate representatives may be appointed (but if they purport Lo exercise their nghts in different ways, then
the power 15 treated as not being exercised) The New Arucles will reflect this

Age of Directors (Article 85)

The Current Articles contamn provisions requinng a Directer to reure and offer imself for re elecuon at the next AGM
after he attains the age of seventy years or more Such provision has been removed to avoid any breach of the
Employment Equality {Age) Regulanons 2006

Conjlicts of mterest (Article 95A)

The Companies Act 2006 set out directors general dutes The provisions largely codify the existng law, but with
some ¢hanges Under the Companies Act 2006, from 1 October 2008 a Drrector must avord a situation where he has,
or can have, a direct or ndirect mterest that conficts, or possibly may conflict with the Company's interests The
requirement 15 very broad and could apply, for example 1f a Director becomes a director of another company or a
trustee of another orgamsation The Companies Act 2006 ailows directors of public campanies Lo authonse confhas
and potential conflicts, where appropriate, where the articles of associanon contam a provision 10 this effect The
Companies Act 2006 also allows the arucles of association to contam other provisions for dealing with directors’
conflicts of 1nterest 1o avord a breach of duty The New Articles give the Directors authenty to apprave such suuanons
and to mclude other provisions to allow confhcts of mterest to be dealt with i a simlar way to the current position

There are safeguards which wll apply when Directors decide whether Lo authonse a conflict or potenual confhct
Furstly, only Directors who have no wterest in the matter being considered will be able to make the relevant decision,
and secondly n taking the deaision the Directors must act i a way they consider, in good faith, will be most likely
to promote the Company s success The Directors will be able 1o impose hmus or conditions when giving
authonsauoen f they think this 15 appropniale

It 15 also proposed that the New Articles should contain provisions relaing to confidenual informanon. attendance at
Board meetings and avalability of Board papers to protect a Direclors being m breach of duty 1l a conflict of interest
or polental conflict of intetest anses These provisions will only apply where the posiion giving nse 10 the potennial
conflict has previously been authonsed by Directors It 1s the Board's intention to report annuatly on the Company’s
procedures for ensurng that the Board's powers to authonse confhicts are operated eflectively
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KEY DATES
2008

The Company s nimeteenth Annual General Meeting will be held on Thursday 25 September 2008 Notice of this

meenng 15 given on page 56

Sigmificant events m the Company's year are expecied normally 10 occur as follows

September 2008
Annual General Meetmg held

Qctober 2008
Dividend paid

December 2008
Half Yearly results announced
Half Yearly Report for the penod 1o 31 Octeber 2008 published

The Company pdys no mntenm dividend
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SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

CONTACT DETAILS
SECRETARY/ADMINISTRATOR

Franklin Templeton Investment

Management Limited
The Adelphi

1-11 John Adam Street
LONDON WC2N 6HT
UK

CLIENT DEALER SERVICFS

Freephone 0800 305 306
Phone +44 (0) 20 7073 8690
Fax +44 (0) 20 7073 8701

Email enquines@iranklintempleton co uk
Website www frankhntempleton co uk

www temit co uk

REGISTRAR

Equiniu

PO Box 28506

Finance House
Orchard Brae
EDINBURGH EH4 17X
UK

www equiniti com

SHAREHOLDERS HELPDESK

Phane 0871 384 2781
Fax 0871 384 2780

HOW TO INVEST
For information on investing in TEMIT with a lump
sum, regular savings plan and gifis, see page 2

Other Sources of Information

Please consult the Finagncial Times for further
informanon on TEMIT or the Company's websiie
(www termit co uk)

Stock Exchange Codes and Net Asset Value Pubhcation
The Stock Exchange Code for TEMIT's listed securnties
1s TEM The net asset value per share 1s pubhshed
the Financial Times

Frequency of Net Asset Value pubhcation

The NAV 15 released every day through the London
Stock Exchange
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